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City of West Jordan
FinancelAdministrative Services

8000 South Redwood Road

West Jordan Utah 84088

801 569 5000

Fax 801 569 5049

November 30 2006

To the Honorable Mayor Members ofthe City Council and Citizens ofthe City ofWest Jordan

State law requires that all general purpose local governments publish within six months of the

close of each fiscal year a complete set of financial statements presented in conformity with

generally accepted accounting principles GAAP and audited in accordance with generally
accepted auditing standards by a firm of licensed certified public accountants Pursuant to that

requirement we hereby issue the comprehensive annual financial report of the City of West

Jordan for the fiscal year ended June 30 2006

This report consists ofmanagement s representations concerning the finances ofthe City ofWest

Jordan City management is responsible for the accuracy of the data and the completeness and

reliability of all the information presented in this report City management is responsible for

establishing and maintaining an internal control structure designed to ensure that the assets ofthe

City are protected from loss theft or misuse and to ensure that adequate accounting data are

compiled to allow for the preparation of the financial statements in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles GAAP The internal control structure is designed to provide
reasonable but not absolute assurance that these objectives are met The concept of reasonable

assurance recognizes that 1 the cost ofa control should not exceed the benefits likely to be

derived and 2 the valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by
management

The City of West Jordan s financial statements have been audited by Osborne Robbins

Buhler PLLC CP As a firm of licensed certified public accountants The goal of the

independent audit was to provide reasonable assurance that the financial statements ofthe City of

West Jordan for the fiscal year ended June 30 2006 are free of material misstatement The

independent audit involved examining on a test basis evidence supporting the amounts and

disclosures in the financial statements assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation The

independent auditor concluded based upon the audit that there was a reasonable basis for

rendering an unqualified opinion that the Citys financial statements for the fiscal year ended

June 30 2006 are fairly presented in conformity with GAAP The independent auditor s report is

presented as the first component ofthe financial section ofthis report
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The City was required to undergo a single audit in accordance with the provisions of the Officeof Management and Budget OMB Circular A 133 Audits of States Local Governments andNon Profit Organizations Information related to this single audit including the opinion on theschedule of expenditures of federal awards the auditor s reports on compliance and internalcontrols over financial reporting in accordance with Governmental Auditing Standards GASand the auditor s report on compliance with requirements applicable to each major program andinternal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A 133 are available in a
separate report

Management s discussion and analysis MD A follows the independent auditor s report andprovides a narrative introduction overview and analysis of the basic financial statementsMD A complement this letter oftransmittal and should be read in conjunction with it

Profile of the Government

The City ofWest Jordan was incorporated in 1941 and operates under the council manager formof municipal government The city council composed of the mayor and six city councilmembers is the legislative branch of city government Each of the council members and the
mayor serve four year terms The city council is responsible for passing ordinances adopting thebudget and appointing committees and the city manager The city manager and the subordinateofficers and employees are the executive branch of city government The city manager is
responsible for directing the day to day operations of the city and carrying out the ordinancesand policies adopted by the council

The City is located in the northern portion of the state The City has experienced populationgrowth of 21 percent over the course of the past five years The City s economy continues to
grow in residential construction industrial construction and retail sales This trend of economic
growth is expected to continue

The City provides a full range of services These services include police and fire protectionculinary water sanitary sewer solid waste and recycling pickup construction and maintenanceof highways parks recreation facilities and other infrastructure the Western Stampede andcultural events Component units are entities for which the government is considered to befinancially accountable Blended component units although legally separate entities are insubstance part of the governments operations and so data from these units are combined withdata of the primary government The West Jordan Redevelopment Agency and the West Jordan
Municipal Building Authority are included as blended component units The City has nodiscretely presented component units The City has established mission statements which clearlydefine key goals for the City The mission statements are as follows

General Government
Attorney Provide clear comprehensive and well grounded legal servIces to elected and
appointed officials ofthe City
City manager Implement the policies of the City Council through the daily direction andcoordination of City activities foster a spirit of teamwork and customer service among Cityemployees recommend policy changes to the City Council and enforce all applicable laws andordinances
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City recorder Create record and maintain official City documents and provide complete and

accurate infonnation in a timely efficient and professional mmmer

Finance Enhancc the quality of financial dccision making by instituting budget practices that

illuminate the short and long term key issucs and choices facing our community prevent fraud

by providing strong internal controls and achieve savings in procurement through fair

competitive practices

Community Development
Create opportunities for economic and community prosperity and provide effective support or

the planning and development needs ofthe City

Fire
Provide professional and efficient services which mitigate fire medical and other risks to life and

property while enhancing public awareness and education through inspections and other

prevention programs for the City

Police
Provide quality community oriented policing through a partnership with our citizens which

creates a safe and secure environment for living and working in the City

Public Works

Maintain infrastructure to provide uninterrupted services to the public and ensurc that new

development and construction conforms to appropriate standards ofquality

The annual budget serves as the foundation for the City s financial planning and control The

objective of these budgetary controls is to ensure compliance with legal provisions embodied in

the annual appropriated hudget approved by the Citys governing body Activities of the general
and special revenue funds arc included in the annual appropriated budget The City has adopted a

five ycar strategic plan for capital improvements In order to comply with state law they are

shown as an annual budget such as with other governmental funds The level of budgetary
control that is the level at which expenditures cannot legally exceed the appropriatcd amount is

established by function within an individual fund The City maintains an encumbrance

accounting system as one technique of accomplishing budgetary control Encumbered amounts

lapse at year end but generally are reappropriated as part of the following year s budget

Factors Affecting Financial Condition

The City continues to meet its responsibility for sound financial management as demonstrated

by the statements and schedules included in the financial section of this report City council city
manager and directors meet annually for a strategic planning session The purpose of the

strategic planning session is to establish the City s priorities for the coming year and how those

priorities can best be accomplished

Budgeting for and accounting for capital projects is a major focus for the City because the City
continues to experience residential and commercial growth The City is committed to planning
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for infrastructure and capital improvement Capital projects are listed in separate funds based on
function This approach has facilitated the tracking of impact fee reserves and annual budgeting

Local economy Jordan Landing the largest mixed use development in the western region is
located in the City of West Jordan Jordan Landing covers over 500 acres total combining 1 200
residential units 14 million square feet of retail space and 1 5 million square feet of office
space The City provides avery favorable environment for retail development

The City is focusing resources on the expansion and enhancement of the area surrounding City
Hall The City recently completed construction of the park located west ofCity Hall This park
has been named the Veterans Memorial Park The park contains improved playgrounds and
amenities The City continues to plan improvements in the park The City has completed
construction ofanew justice center located south ofCity Hall The justice center is the home of
the police and Justice Court for the City The justice center provides more space for the growing
police and court departments

Long term financial planning The long term financial plan for the City is very favorable The
City s general fund remains healthy adding to fund balance regularly The City has taken
advantage of low interest rates to finance capital improvements to support development within
the City Maintaining and expanding infrastructure to support growth remains one of the City s

greatest challenges The City incorporates a detailed strategic plan for capital improvements in
its annual budget that addresses the funding of roads parks storm sewer water and sewer

projects

Cash management Cash during the year was invested in the Public Treasurer s Investment
Fund statement savings and repurchase agreements The Citys investment policy is to
minimize credit and market risks while maintaining a competitive yield on its portfolio The
City s investments are un col1ateralized and insured only up to 100 000 per institution by the
FDIC Utah operates under state statute allowing investments to be un collateralized if state

guidelines are followed

Risk Management The City is self insured for unemployment The City is also self insured to
15 000 for general liability automobile liability and errors and omissions The City is a

member of Utah Risk Management Mutual Association URMMA which provides general
liability automobile liability and errors and omissions coverage for claims in excess of the self
insured amount The City also pays insurance premiums for losses not covered by its self
insurance or URMMA

Post employment Benefits The City pays out unused vacation holiday compensatory time
and execute leave balances at termination The City provides postretirement health and dental
benefits for certain retirees and their dependents As of the end ofthe current fiscal year there
were 10 employees receiving these benefits Retired employees may elect to apply their
remaining unused sick leave toward the monthly health insurance premium at a rate ranging from
40 percent to 70 percent depending on years of service In order to qualify the employee is

required to notify hisher department head at least one year in advance of retirement GAAP
does require governments to report a liability in the financial statements in connection with an

employer s obligation to provide these benefits
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Awards and Acknowledgements
The Government Finance Officers Association GFOA awarded a Certificate of Achievement
for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City for its CAFR for the fiscal year ended June 30

2005 This was the twenty fifth consecutive year that the City has received this prestigious
award In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement the City published an easily
readable and efficiently organized CArR This report satisfied both GAAP and applicable legal
requirements

A Certificate ofAchievement is valid for a period ofone year only We believe that our current

CAFR continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program s requirements and we are

submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate

In addition the City also received the GFOA s Distinguished Budget Presentation Award for its

annual budget document for fiscal year 2006 In order to qualify for the Distinguished Budget
presentation Award the government s budget document was judged to be proficient in several

categories including as a policy document a financial plan an operations guide and a

communications device

The preparation ofthe CAFR on a timely basis was made possible by the dedicated service ofthe

entire staff of the Finance Department Each member of the department has our sincere

appreciation for the contributions made in the preparation of this report In closing the

leadership and support of the governing body of the City has been an important factor in the

preparation of this report

Sincerely

J
Deputy Finance Director

David A Hales

Director of Finance Administrative Services
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Certificate of
Achievement
for Excellence
in Financial

Reporting
Presented to

City of West Jordan

Utah

For its Comprehensive Annual

Financial Report
for the Fiscal Year Ended

June 30 2005

A Certificate ofAchievement for Excellence in Financial

Reporting is presented by the Government Finance Officers

Association of the United States and Canada to

government units and public employee retirement

systems whose comprehensive annual financial

reports CAFRs achieve the highest
standards in government accounting

and financial reporting

ftir
President

Executive Director
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CITY OF WEST JORDAN
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Title Name

Mayor
Council Member

Council Member

Council Member

Council Member

Council Member

Council Member

City Manager
Assistant City Manager
Public Works Director

Community Development Director

Engineering Director
Police Chief
Fire Chief

Finance Director

City Attorncy
Treasurerer

Judge
City Recorder

Human Resource Director

David B Newton

Rob Bennett

Kathy llilton

Melissa K Johnson

Mike Kellermeyer
Kim B Rolfe

Lyle C Summers

Gary M Luebbers

Thomas Steele

Tim Peters

Thomas Burdctte

Wcndell Rigby
Kcn McGuire

Brad Wardle

David Hales

Roger Cutler
David Zobell

Ron Kunz

Melanie S Briggs
Debbie Bell

10



FINANCIAL SECTION
oo
tfjZ
n
32

loooIl
Oloool
Z
t



OSBORNE ROBBINS BUHLER P L L C Certified Public Accountants

JS27 SOUTH 2300 EAST SUITE 201 SALT LAKE CITY UIAI1 HI 117Af46 PHONE 3 H 22 FAX 27fWiH9

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council

City of West Jordan Utah

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities

the business type activities each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund

information of the City of West Jordan Utah the City as of and for the year endcd June

30 2006 which collectively comprise the City s basic financial statements as listed in the

table of contents These financial statements arc the responsibility of the City s

management Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements

based on our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the

United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in

Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General ofthc United States

Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable

assurance about whether the financial statements are frec of material misstatcment An

audit includes examining on a test basis evidence supporting the amounts and

disclosures in the financial statements An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management as well as evaluating the

overall financial statement presentation We believe that our audit provides a reasonable

basis for our opinions

In our opinion the financial statements referred to above present fairly in all matcrial

respects the respective financial position of the governmental activities the business

type activities each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the

City of West Jordan Utah as of June 30 2006 and the respective changes in financial

position and where applicable cash f10ws thereof and the respective budgetary
comparison for the General Fund and the Redevelopment Agency Fund for the year then

ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States

of America

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards we have also issued our report dated
November 22 2006 on our consideration of the City s intemal control over financial

reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws regulations
contracts and grant agrcements and other matters The purpose of that report is to

describe the scope of our testing of intcmal control over financial reporting and

compliance and the results of that testing and not to provide an opinion on the internal

control over financial reporting or on compliancc That report is an integral part of an

audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be

considercd in assessing the results of our audit
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The management s discussion and analysis on pages 15 through 25 is not a required part
of the basic financial statements but is supplementary information required by accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America We have applied certain

limited procedures which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the

methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary information

However we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements

that collectively comprise the City of West Jordan Utah s basic financial statements

The introductory section combining and individual fund financial statements and
schedules and statistical section are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are

not a required part of the basic financial statements The combining and individual fund

financial statements and schedules have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied
in the audit of the basic financial statements and in our opinion are fairly stated in all

material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole The

introductory section and statistical section have not been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and accordingly we

express no opinion on them

o 4

November 22 2006
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Management s Discussion and Analysis

As management of the City of West Jordan the City we offer readers of the City s financial

statements this narrative overview and analysis ofthe financial activities ofthe City fi r the fiscal

year ended June 30 2006 We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in

conjunction with additional information that we have furnished in our letter of transmittal

Financial Highlights

The assets of the City exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent fiscal year by
414 608448 Of this an1ount 56412 333 unrestricted net assets may be used to meet the

government s ongoing obligation to citizens and creditors

The government s total net assets increased by 8 040 011 during 2006 The increase in net

assets can be attributed to impact fee revcnues and contributions of capital assets from

developers
The unreserved fund balance for the general fund was 6 348 594 or approximately 17 7

percent oftotal general fund expenditures The unreserved fund balance for the general fund

decreased by 1 868 981 from the previous year

The Citys total outstanding debt experienced anet increase of 3 399452 The increase was

primarily due to the issuance of new debt The new debt included tax increment bonds in the

amount of 8 020 000 and interim warrants in the amount of 495 OOO

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to the City s basic financial
statements The City s basic financial statements comprise three components 1 govemment
wide financial statements 2 fund financial statements and 3 notes to the financial statements

This report also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial

statements themselves

Government wide financial statements The government wide financial statements are

designed to provide readers with a broad overview ofthe City s finances in manner similar to a

private sector business

The statement of net assets presents infOln1ation on all of the City of West Jordan s assets and

liabilities with the difference between the two reported as net assets Over time increases or

decreases in net assets may servc as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the

City ofWest Jordan is improving or dcteriorating

The statement of activities prcsents information showing how the City s net assets changed
during the most recent fiscal year All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the

underlying event giving rise to the change occurs regardless of the timing ofrelated cash flows

Thus revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in

cash flows in future fiscal periods e g uncollccted taxes and earned but unused vacation leave

Both of the government wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City of West

Jordan that are principally sUPPOlied by taxes and intergovernmental revenues governmental
15



activities from other functions that are intended to cover all or a significant portion oftheir costs

through user fees and charges business type activities The governmental activities of the City
of West Jordan include general government community development police fire public works
and parks and recreation The business type activities of the City of West Jordan include water

sewer and solid waste

The government wide financial statements include not only the City itself known as the primary
government but also two legally separate entities the Redevelopment Agency and the

Municipal Building Authority for which the City is financially accountable Financial
information for these component units is blended with the financial information presented for the

primary government itsclf The government wide financial statements can be found on pages
28 29 of this report

Fund financial statements A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain
control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives The City of
West Jordan like other state and local governments uses fund accounting to ensure and
demonstrate compliance with finance related legal requirements All funds of the City of West
Jordan can be divided into two categories governmental funds and proprietary funds

Governmentalfunds Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions

reported as governmental activities in the government wide financial statements However
unlike the government wide financial statements governmental fund financial statements focus
on the near term inf10ws and outflows of spendable resources as well as on balances of

spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year Such information may be useful in

evaluating a governments near term financing requirements

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that ofthe government wide financial
statements it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities in the government wide financial statements

By doing so readers may better understand the long term impact of the government s near term

financing decisions Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the government fund
statement of revenues expenditures and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to

facilitate this comparison between the two

The City maintains twelve individual governmental funds five major funds and seven non major
funds Information is presented separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the

governmental fund statement of revenues expenditures and changes in fund balances for the

general fund the redevelopment agency the capital support fund the road capital improvemcnt
fund and the park capital improvement fund which are considered major funds Financial
information for the other seven funds is combined into a single aggregated presentation
Individual fund data for each of these nonmajor governmental funds is provided in the form of

combining statements elsewhere in this report The basic governmental fund financial
statements can be found on pages 30 34 of this report The City adopts an annual appropriated
budget for its general fund and the redevelopment agency Budgetary comparison statements

have been provided for the general fund and the redevelopment agency to demonstrate

compliance with these budgets

16



Proprietaryfunds The City of West Jordan maintains two di fferent types of proprietary funds

Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as business type activities in the

government wide financial statements The City maintains three individual enterprise funds

Information is presented separately in the proprietary statement of net assets and the proprietary
statement of revenues expense and changes in fund net assets for the water fund sewer fund

and the solid waste fund which are all considered major funds Internal service funds are used to

accumulate and allocate costs internally among the City s various functions The City of West

Jordan uses internal service funds to account for its fleet maintenance and risk management
activities Because these services predominantly benefit governmental rather than busincss type
activities they have been included principally within the governmental activities in the

government widc financial statements but are combined into a single aggregated presentation in

the proprietary fund financial statements Individual fund data for the internal service funds is

provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in the report The basic proprietary
fund financial statements can be found on pages 35 38 of this report

Notes to the financial statements The notes provide additional infonnation that is essential to

the full undcrstanding of the data provided in the government wide and fund financial

statements The notes to the financial statements can be found on pages 39 68 ofthis report

Other information In addition to the basic financial statemcnts and accompanying notes this

report also presents certain required supplementary information The combining statements

rcfcrred to earlier in connection with nonmajor funds and intcrnal service funds arc presented as

supplementary information

Govern ment wideFinancial Analysis

As noted earlicr net asscts may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government s financial

position At June 30 2006 the City s assets exceeded liabilities by 414 608448 By far the

largest portion 78 8 percent ofthe City s net assets arc composed of capital assets less any debt
used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding Capital assets are us cd to provide services to

citizens and they are not available for future spending Although the investment in capital assets

are reported net of any related outstanding debt it should be noted that the resources needed to

repay this debt must be provided from other sources since the capital assets themselves cannot

be used to liquidate these liabilities

17



City ofWest Jordan s Net Assets

Governmental Business type
Activities Activities Total

2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005

Currcnt and other assets 61 501 736 57 074160 35 694 283 36 250 227 97 196 019 93 324 387
Capital assets 279 868 086 277 746 353 98 891 203 93 886 380 378 759 289 371 632 733

Total assets 341 369 822 334 820 513 134 585 486 130 136 607 475 955 308 464 957 120

Other liabilities 6 606 536 7499 772 2418 472 1 966 511 9 025 008 9 466 283
Long term liabilities outstanding 43 936 247 37 075 642 8 385 605 11 846 758 52 321 852 48 922 400

Total liabilities 50 542 783 44 575 414 10 804 077 13 813 269 61 346 860 58 388 683

Net assets

Invested in capital assets net

of related debt 238 532 908 248 602 336 88 067 807 86 017 788 326 600 715 334 620 124
Restricted 19 323489 10421 928 12 271 911 8 346 960 31 595 400 18 768 888
Unrestrictcd 32 970 642 31 220 835 23 441 691 21 958 590 56 412 333 53 179 425

Total net assets 290 827 039 290 245 099 123 781 409 116 323 338 414 608 448 406 568 437

A portion of the net assets 64 percent represents resources that are subject to external
restrictions on how they may be used The remaining balance of unrestricted net assets

56412 333 is available to meet the government s ongoing obligations to citizens and
creditors

Governmental activities Governmental activities increased the City s net assets by 581 940

accounting for 72 percent of the total growth in net assets Key elements ofthis increase are as

follows

Sales tax revenue increased 1 546 793 from the prior year This increase is attributable
to favorable commercial conditions within the City and an increase in the number of
retail establishments

18



City ofWest Jordan s Changes in Net Assets

Governmental Business type

Activities Activities Total

2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005

Revenues

Program revenues

Charges for services 19 445 971 9 699 392 23 067 879 22 296 746 42 513 850 31 996 138

Operating grants and

contributions 1 165 432 1 224 145 1165 432 1 224145

Capital grants and

contributions 7 634 957 4313 979 5 I 02 505 4 313 979 12 737 462

General revenues

Property taxes 9 688 247 8 545 487 9 688 247 8 545487

Sales tax 13 876 02 12 329 909 13 876 702 12 329 909

Other taxes 6 614 174 5 819 934 6 614 174 5 819 934

Other 2 60 I 505 1374 867 751354 313 942 3352 859 1 688 809

Total revenues 53 392 031 46 628 691 28 133 212 27 713193 81 525 243 74341 884

Expenses
General government 8233 366 7268 095 8 233 366 7268 095

Community development 9 008307 2162 474 9 008 307 2 162 474

Police 12 311174 10 792590 12311 174 10 792 590

Fire 8 033 001 7 192 872 8 033 001 7192 872

Public works 10 520 361 10 157 241 10 520 361 10 157 241

Parks and recreation 2 935 580 2 217 892 2 935 580 2 217 892

Interest on long term debt 1 839 223 1 636 608 1 839223 1 636 608

Water 11 464422 8 925 550 11 464 422 8 925 550

Sewer 5 915 633 3 522 665 5 915 633 3 522 665

Solid waste 3 224 165 2449 861 3 224 165 2 449 861

Total expenses 52 881012 41 427 772 20 604 220 14 898 076 73 485 232 56 325 848

Increase in net assets before

transfers 511 019 5 200 919 7 528 992 12 815 117 8 040 011 18 016 036

Transfers 70 921 2 902 899 70 921 2 902 899

Increase in net assets 581 940 8 103 818 7 458 071 9 912218 8 040 011 18 016 036

Netassets beginning 290 245 099 282 141281 116323 338 106 411120 406 568 437 388 552 401

Net assets ending 290 827 039 290 245 099 123 781 409 116 323 338 414 608 448 406 568 437
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Charges for services
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Business type activities Business type activities increased the City s net assets by 7458 071

accounting for 92 8 pcrcent of the total growth in the government s net assets Key elemcnts of

this increase arc as follows

The City s business typc activities received contributions in the amount of 4 313 980

These contributions are capital assets donatcd to thc City by dcvelopcrs
Charges for services increased by 77l 133 ovcr thc prcvious ycar fhc incrcased number

of rcsidences caused this increase in part
Impact fees for business type activities were 5 265 130 fhese fees are used to fund

capital projects rcquired by new growth and development within the City
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Financial Analysis of the Government s Funds

As noted earlier the City of West Jordan uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate

compliance with finance related legal requirements

Governmental funds The focus of the City of West Jordan s governmental funds is to provide
information on near term inflows outflows and balances of spendable resources Such
information is useful in assessing the City s financing requirements In particular unreserved
fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a governments net resources available for

spending at the end ofthe fiscal year

At the end of the current fiscal year the City s governmental funds reported combined ending
fund balances of 37 034 563 an increase of 3 931 734 in comparison with prior year Of the

ending fund balance 62 percent 22 843 729 constitutes unreserved fund balance which is

available for spending at the governments discretion The remainder of the fund balance is

reserved to indicate that it is already committed 1 to pay debt service 3 606 323 2 to pay for

construction funded by bond proceeds or impact fee revenues 4492 415 3 to fund the

construction and improvement of class C roads 5 994 705 4 for avariety ofother purposes
97 391

The general fund is the chiefoperating fund ofthe City ofWest Jordan At the end ofthe current

fiscal year unreserved fund balance ofthe general fund was 6 348 594 while total fund balance

reached 12 809 256 As a measure of the general fund s liquidity it may be useful to compare
both unreserved fund balance and total fund balance to total fund expenditures Unreserved fund

balance represents 18 percent of total general fund expenditures while total fund balance

represents 36 percent of that same amount

The City s total general fund balance experienced a 312 880 decrease during the current fiscal

year Expenditures were approximately 11 percent less than the budgeted amount Unreserved

fund balance decreased 1 868 981 in comparison with prior year These funds are available to

spend at the City s discretion

The redevelopment agency fund experienced an increase in fund balance of 795 757 Ending
fund balance was 823 830 The increase in fund balance was partially due to issuance of debt

that is reported as bond proceeds in the amount of 8 020 000

The capital support fund has a total fund balance of 8 035452 of that amount 1 476 972 is

reserved for debt service

The road capital improvement fund has a total fund balance of 1 727 696 none of the fund

balance is reserved

The park capital improvement fund has a total fund balance of 6 379 662 of that amount

4 251 691 is reserved for open space acquisition funded by bond proceeds
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Proprietary funds The City of West Jordan s proprietary funds provide the same type of

information found in the government wide financial statements business type activities but in

more detail

Unrestricted net assets of the Water Sewer and Solid Waste funds at the end ofthe year were

4 993 58l 13 282 887 and 5 165 223 respectively Unrestricted net assets in the proprietary
funds remained relatively unchanged from the previous year

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

DiHerences between the original budget and the final amendcd budget were relatively minor

2 171 858 increase in appropriations and can be briefly summarized as follows

l 068439 increase in public works for C road projects
67 898 increase in police for equipment and overtime funded by grants
981 996 increase in fire 733 166 for a ladder truck and 248 830 for equipment and

supplies funded by grants
53 525 increase in various minor budget adjustments

Of this increase 333 981 was to be funded out of miscellaneous increases in revenues and the

remaining 1 837 877 was to be budgeted from available fund balance During the year
however expenditures were less than budgetary estimates and revenues were greater than

budgetary estimates resulting in only a minor decrease in fund balance

Capital Assets and Debt Administration

Capital assets The City of West Jordan s investment in capital assets for its governmental and

business type activities as of June 30 2006 amounts to 378 759 288 net of accumulated

depreciation This investment in capital assets includes land construction in process machinery
and equipment computer equipment building building improvements improvements other than

buildings md infrastructure The total increase in the City s invcstmcnt in capital assets for the

current fiscal year was 19 percent a I percent increase for governmental activities and a 5

percent increase for business type activitif s

Major capital asset cvcnts during the current fiscal year included thc following
Infrastructure and land was donated to the City by developcrs and became the City s

responsibility to maintain The estimated fair value of the infrastructure and land donated

in the proprietary funds was 4 313 980 Class C road funds are classified as capital
grants and contributions but not all the funds received had been cxpcnded on capital
projects at year end

The City spent 13 875404 on capital expansion throughout the City The City
completed renovation of a major park and a ncw police and court building The City also

completed various road storm sewer projects and water and sewer projects

Additional infomlation on the City s capital assets can be found in Note 4 of the basic financial

statcments
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City of West Jordan s Outstanding Debt

Governmcntal Business type
Activities Activities Total

2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005

Revenue bonds 27 045 000 20 9 5 000 7 835 000 85 000 34 880 000 32 100 000
General obligation bonds 10 10 000 10455 000 10 10 000 10 455 000
Tax increment notes

payable to developers 466 287 600 690 466 287 600 690
Other liabilities 4 3 6 070 4 026 528 109 382 78 229 4 425 452 4 104 757

Capital leases 998 890 78 424 441 223 583 529 1440 3 661 953

Total 43 936 247 37 075 642 8 385 605 846 758 52 32 852 48 922 400

Long term debt At the end of the current fiscal year the City had 52 321 852 in outstanding
long term debt

The City s total debt including compensated absences and other long term liabilities increased

by 3 399452 during the current fiscal year The increase is mostly due to the issuance of
revenue bonds in the amount of 8 020 000 Additional information on the City s long term debt
can be found in Note 5 to the basic financial statements

The City s bond rating is Aaa for its lease revenue bonds sales tax bonds and general obligation
bonds The City has lO llO OOO in outstanding general obligation debt as of June 30 2006
Utah Constitution limits general obligation debt to four percent of the market value of real

property Considering present market value the City s debt limit is 217 09l 583

Economic Factors and the Next Year s Budgets and Rates

During the fiscal year beginning July 1 2006 sales tax revenue is projected to increase
1 585 898 or 14 6 over the prior year Jordan Landing phase V is scheduled to open during

the fall of2006 A Target and Best Buy stores will anchor this phase During 2007 phase VI of
Jordan Landing is scheduled to open adding an additional 150 000 square feet ofretail office

space Phase VI will complete the Jordan Landing retail center project Sales tax receipts are

cyclical in nature over the long term for various reasons It is projected that sales tax revenue

will begin to level offand decrease over the next three to five year period due to the completion
ofthe Jordan Landing center and competition from large new retail projects in surrounding
communities

During the first quarter ofthe 2007 fiscal year receipt ofdevelopment impact fee revenue

combined budget projection is 13 518 362 is down significantly This trend which is

expected to continue will result in a combined revenue shortfall ofover six million dollars for
the fiscal year This shortfall is attributable to aslow down in large residential projects and the
build out ofJordan Hills Villages Furthermore although the national housing slump has not
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rcached Utah indicators are that it will within the next several months For these reasons

budgetary reductions are being implemcntcd to both the current year capital budget and the long
range capital improvement strategic plan

The West Side Master Plan which covers 6 600 acres of undevelopcd land is scheduled for

completion by December 2006 Upon adoption ofthis plan and approval of the corresponding
zoning a pcnt up interest in residential and commercial development on the City s west side

should resume

Two large industrial development projects are scheduled for completion during 2007 KraftMaid

Cabinetry a 100 million manufacturing plant is scheduled to open in April 2007 with a

projected 600 jobs Dannon Company Inc is proceeding with a 15 million dollar expansion of

their existing plant which will double their production capacity There continues to be a strong
interest in future industrial development on the City s west side

Requests for Information

The financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City of West Jordan s

finances for all those with an interest in the government s finances Questions concerning any of

the infom1ation provided in this report or requests for additional financial information should be

addressed to the Finance Department 8000 South Redwood Road West Jordan Utah 84088
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BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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CITY OF WEST JORDAN

Statement of Net A set

June 30 2006

Govenunental Business type
Activities Activities Total

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 24294 295 1 1 Il 357 25 405 652
Account receivable 469 549 1 662 140 2 131 689
Taxes receivable 13 940 844 13 940 844
Other receivable 8 533 503 166 511 699
Internal balances 803 100 803 100

Intergovernmental reeeivable 692 338 692 338

Prepaid expenses 97 391 97 391

Inventory 74 250 123 971 198 221
Water stock 278 437 278 437
Investment in joint ventures 15 798 865 15 798 865
Unamortized bond issuance costs 358 124 212172 570 296
Discount on bond issuance 59 577 59 577
Restrided assets

Cash and cash equivalent 20 703 736 16 807 275 37 511 011

Capital asscts not being depreciated 123 164 809 487 063 123 651 872

Capital asscts being depreciated nct of

accumulated depreciation 156 703 276 98 404140 255 107416

Total asset 341 369 822 134 585 486 475 955 308

Liabilitks

Account payable 1 697 516 1 996 827 3 694 343

Interest payable 393 331 393 331

Payroll payable 895 920 32 808 928 728

Contracts payable 871 417 232 375 1 103 792

Other payables 857 569 857 569

Premium on bond issuance 269 809 269 809

Liabilities payable from restricted assets

Accounts payable 99 532 99 532

Deposits 1 620 974 56 930 1 677 904

Long temlliabilities

Portion due orpayable within one year

Compensated absences 1 618 217 78 367 1 696 584
Bonds payable 3 285 000 1 260 000 4 545 000

Capital leases 151 047 146 796 297 843

Contracts payable 90 000 90 000

Tax increment notes payable to developer 251 500 251 500

Portion due orpayable after one year

Compensated absences 982 853 31 015 1 013 868

Bonds payable 33 870 000 6 575 000 40445 000

Capital leases 847 843 294427 1 142 270

Contracts payable 1 625 000 1 625 000

Tax incrementnotespayable to developer 1 214 787 1214 787

Total liabilities 50 542 783 10 804 077 61 346 860

Net Assets

Invested incapital assets netof related debt 238 532 908 88 067 808 326 600 716

Restricted for

CiaC road 5 994 705 5 994 705

Corutmction 4492 415 4492 415

Impact Fee 5 230 046 12 271 910 17 501 956

Debt service 3 606 323 3 606 323

Unrestrided 32 970 642 23 441 691 56 412 333

Tatal netassets 290 827 039 123 781 409 414 608 448

lbe notes to thebasic financial statements are an integral part ofthis Slatement
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General

M

Cash llI1d cash quiVlllents
Accounts receivable

Taxr ceivable

Other receivable

Prepaid expenditures
Due from other governments
Due from othfimds

Re tricted

Ch ond cashequ VlIlents
Total

Liabilities ond fundbalance

Liabilities

Accom payabl
Payroll payable
Deforred revenue

Other payable
Contracts peyable
Due to other funds

Liabilitie payable from r tricted ets

Depooits
TotaIliabiliti

Fnnd bo1onoc

Resered

For clasa C roeds

For debtservice

For project
For prepaid expenditore

Unreserved delicit

UnresetVOd reported innonmejor
Capital projec funds

Special revenue fund delicit
Totalfundbalance

Totalliabilities and fimd balances

2 903 105

469 19

11 396 994

8 533

1 452 671

8 081 636

24 312 488

837 768

670 056

8 056 560

317 74

1 620 974

11 503 232

5 994 705

465 957

6 348 594

ll9 256

24 312 488

CITY OF WEST JORDAN

Balance Sheet

Governmental Fnnd l

Junc 30 2006

Redevelopment
AJcncy

Capital

Support
Fuo

6317 121

1 465 000 1 078775

866 294

2 331 294

1 476 972

8 872 868

1 465 000 837 415

42 461

1 507 461 8n 415

866 294 1 476 972

42 464 6 558 481

823 830

2 331 291

8 035 453

8872 868

Amounbreported forgovemmenta1activitie5 in tht statement of net assets are diffc r nt bccaHSc

Capital ts used in governmental activities are not financialresource and therefore are not reported
in the fimds

Certain revenue isdeferred in the governmental ftmds but is not in the statement of net assets

becaus it qualifies for recogrution under the economic resources measurement focus

Intemal service funds are used by manageme nt to charge the costs of flc1 maintenance and risk

management to individua1 fimds Thecurrent assets and liabiIitic of tile internalservice fund9

areincludedin the governmental activities in the statement ofnet assets

Long tenn liabilities inoluding bondspayable are nol due and payat le in the eurrent period and Iherefore

arenot report din the funds

Intcrest pa blc on long term obligations does not require current fin8iu1a l re ourc s and isnot

reported in the governmental fimds

Dcfcrred bond issuance costs and unamortized bondpremium arenot applicable to th cUrrentperiod and

therefore arenotreported in the govenunenW funds

Net assets of govunmcntal activities

Th note to the basic financial tatements arean integral part of this statement
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Road Capital
Improvement

Fund

1878 341

289 653

2 567 994

217 834

622 464

840 298

1 727 698

1 727 698

S 2 567 996

Park Capital
Jmprowmcnt

Fund

488 052

6 244 066

6 732 118

348 856

352 456

4 251 69 I

2127 971

6 379 662

6 732 118

Other

Governmental

Funds

4 620 865

97 391

692 338

3 345 116

8 755 785

330 308

883

313 466

3 600 24 353

607 111

1 497 121

797 100

240 724

97 391

6 933 930

810 481

7 258 664

8 755 785

Total

Governmental

Funds

75

16 207 484

469 549

13 940 844

8533

97 391

692 338

1 452 671

20 703 737

53 572 547

1 516 932

888 773

10 672 441

317 874

871 417

649 572

1 620 974

16 537 984

5 994 705

3 606 323

4 492 415

97 391

16 720 280

6 933 930

810481
34 563

53 572 546

279 868 088

10 672 441

7 433 632

43 936 247

393 331

147 892

290 827 039



CiTY OF WEST JORDAN

Statement orRcYl J1uCS Expcnd1 un and Changes in fund Balances

Goernmental Fund

For th fi al year eriJed Junt 10 2006

Road Capital Park Capital O o r Tol 1

Redevelopment Capital SUppOl1 Improvement IrTipl 11Vt mlmt Governmental Governmental

Geneml r pency fund Fund Fond Funds Funds

Revenues

Taxes 25 117 237 985 063 2 662 584 6 951 29 571 835

LICenses and permits 2735 206 2735 206

Intergovernmental 3 527 851 160 000 260 652 541 6 4 490 I 99

Charges for services 834 952 114 082 1 949 034

Fines and forfeitures j 883 1 14 1 883 114

Intedllnd charge 846 938 3 846 938

Impact tees 2207 678 1 430 920 2 044 803 5 683 401

Interest 596 811 46 642 254 949 51652 260 618 nO 558 5 31 230

Mj cellaneous 31 L881 240 955 4 55 204 873 762 264

T utal revenues 40 5 990 I 91 705 158 488 2263 885 1 952 19U 3 232 963 52 453 221

Expenditures
Current

G neralgovernment 7 942 655 7942 655

Community Development 1756 603 7 077 119 I I 09 690 9 943 412

Police 12 006 929 12 006 929

Fire 7 658 183 7 658 183

Public works 4 959 686 4 959 686

Parks and recreation 1 554 333 527 975 2 082308
Debt service

Principal payments 165 000 1 700 000 440 000 510 000 2 8 5 000

hitere t and fls ai charges 266 9 5 160 000 124 675 498 883 1 850 473

Bond issuance costs 214 570 214 576

Capitaloull y

Road s 2 582 437 2 582 437

Storm sewer 1 201 971 1 201 971

Parks 1347 950 1347 950

lluilJings 21357 2 459 550 3 480 907

Totalexpenditures 35 878 389 7 7J 0IO 2 681357 7 J12 1341 950 6 08 069 57 086 487

Exces deficiency ofrcycnues

overunder expenditures 4 775 601 0 531 905 i 0J227 004 240 3 075106 4 63J 266

Other financing sOurces uses

Issuance of bonds 8 020 000 495 000 8 5 5000

Transfers in 742338 2 530 000 2 208 144 778 64 1765 130 8 023 776

T r l nsfrrsout ill108 9 692338 L450619 7 973 776

Totalother financing sources uses 5 U8848 J 7 327 662 lJl79 38 2 208 144 778164 260 130 8 565 000

Net change in fundbalance 312 880 795757 1 556 512 324 917 1 382 404 814 970 3 931 734

Fund balance beginning 13 22 136 28 073 6478 941 402781 4 997 258 8 073 640 33 102 829

Fund balances ending 12 809 250 823 1I39 1 727 698 2fd79662 725 664 37 034 563

The notes tI the C naJlci 1 statementsarean integral part Jfthis statement
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City of West Jordan
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues

Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance of Governmental Funds
to the Statement of Activities

For the year Ended June 30 2006

Net change in fund balance total governmental funds

The change in net assets reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities
is different because

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures However in the statement of
activities the cost of those assets is allocated over thcir estimated use lives and reported as

depreciation expense This is the amountby which capital related expenditures 9 551 848
exceeded depreciation 8 308 429 in the current period

Contributions of capital assets from developers are not recorded as proceeds in the fund
statements

Bond proceeds are reported as financing sources in governmental funds and thus contribute to

the change in fund balances In the statement of net assets however issuing debt increased

long term liabilities and docs not affect the statement of activities Also governmental funds

report the effect of issuance costs and premiums when debt is first issued whereas these amounts

are deferred and amortized in the statement of activities This amount is the net effect of these
differences in the treatment of the issuance of long term debt

Proceeds of bond issuance
Bond issuance costs

Net adjustment

Repayment of principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds but reduces the liability
in the statement of net assets

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial resources are not

reported as revenue in the funds
Amortization of original issue prcmium and bond issuance costs

Property tax accrual
CDHO deferred revenue

Deferred ambulance revenue

Net adjustment

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do notrequire the use of current financial
resources and therefore arc not reported as expenditures in governmental funds

Accrued interest expense

Compensated absences
Net adjustment

Internal service funds arc used by management to charge the costs of fleet maintenance and
risk management to individual funds

Change innet assets of governmental activities

32

8 515 000
278 736

14 069
607 288

23 5 II
136 012

1 1 250
368 852

3 931 734

1 243419

8 236 264

2 949 404

752 742

357 602

298 507

581 940



CITY OF WEST JORDAN

General Fund

Schedule ofRevenues Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended June 30 2006

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive

Original Final Amounts Negative
Revenues

Taxes 23 678 998 23 678 998 25 917 237 2 238 239

Licenses and permits 2 135 500 2 135 500 2 735 206 599 O6

Intergovernmental 3 086 082 3 420 063 3 527 851 107788

Charges for services 2 537 333 2 537 333 1 834 952 702 381

Fines and forfeitures 1 977 570 1 977 570 1 883 114 94 456

Interfund charges 3 846 938 3 846 938 3 846 938

Interest income 160 000 160 000 596 8 436 811

Miscellaneous 193100 193 00 311 881 118 781

Total revenues 37 615 521 37 949 502 40 653 990 2 704 488

Expenditures
General government 9 044 707 9 098 232 7 942 655 1 155 577

Community development 1 912 214 1 912 214 1 756 603 155 611

Police 12131 747 12 199 645 12 006 929 192716
Fire 7 550 417 8 532413 7 658 183 874 230

Public works 5 624 189 6 692 628 4 959 686 1 699 671

Parks and recreation 1836 372 1 836 372 1 554 333 282 039

Total expenditures 38 099 646 40 271 504 35 878 389 4 393 116

Excess ofrevenues over expenditures 484125 2 322 002 4 775 601 7 097 603

Other financing sources uses

Transfers in 692 338 742338 742 338

Transfers out 4 242 767 8 184 877 5 830 819 2 354 058

Total other financing sources uses 3 55042 7 442 539 5 088 481 2 354 058

Net change in fund balance 4 034 554 9 764 541 312 880 9451 661

Fund balance beginning 13 122 136 13 122 136 13 122 136

Fund balance ending 9 087 582 3 357 595 12 809 256 9451 661

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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Redevelopment Agency
Statement ofRevenues Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance Budget and Actual

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30 2006

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive

Original Final Amounts Negative
Revenues

Taxes 1 178 000 1 178 000 985 063 192 937

Intergovernmental 160 000 160 000

Interest 46 642 46 642

Total revenues 1 178 000 1 338 000 1 191 705 146 295

Expenditures
Community development 413 000 8 593 000 7 077 119 1 515 881

Debt service

Principal payments 165000 165 000 165 000

Interest and fiscal charges 35 500 35 500 266 915 231415
Bond Issuance Costs 214 576 214 576

Total expenditures 613 500 8 793 500 7 723 610 1 069 890

Excess ofrevenues over expenditures 564 500 7455 500 6 531 905 923 595

Other financing uses

Bond proceeds 8 020 000 8 020 000

Transfers in 180488 1 446 954 1446 954

Transfers out 744 988 2 011454 692 338 1 319 116

Total other financing uses sources 564 500 7 455500 7 327 662 127 838

Net change in fund balance
M

795 757 795 757

Fund balance beginning 28 073 28 073 28 073

Fund balance ending 28 073 28 073 823 830 795 757

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part ofthis statement
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CITY OF WEST JORDA1

St1tcment ofNeA eL

Proprietary Funds

JUlie 30 2006

Business typc Activities Enterprise FUnds

Governmental

Activities

Total Business Internal

Asset Water Sewer Solid Waste typeFun Service Funds

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalent S 523477 587 880 S 1 111 357 8 086 811

Receivables net ofallowance

lor lmcollect1blcs

Ace aunts 848 364 387 90 425 875 1 662 140

Unbilled 306 004 103 156 94 006 503 166

Due from other hmds 1 048 794 1 048 794

Inventory BP7L 23 97L 74 250

Towl current a et 1 278 339 1 014 534 2 156 555 4449 428 1l 161 061

Noncurrent asset

Restricted cash and cash equivalents 12 112 853 4 694 422 16 1l07 275

Bood jssuance costs net 212 172 212 172

Investment injoint ventures 12 411318 33117 547 15 7911 865

Watcr stock 2711 437 278 437

Capibl assets not being depreciated 487063 487 063

Capital assets being depreciated net

ofaccumulated depree iation 68 779 637 333 176 1 291 327 1 i2 3 209 645

Total capital asset netof

accumulated depreciation 9 26 QQ 28 333 176 1 3 1 327 98 891 203 2209 6

Totalnoncurrcnt asset 1l1 1l70 162 15lL 4 6711 874 131 987 952

Total assets 83 148 501 46 453 450 6 835 429 136 373110 11 370 706

Liabilitie
Current liabilities

Accounts payable 1 6011 378 18 730 369 718 1 96 1l26 180 586

Payroll payable 11l 4411 13 467 893 32 8011 7 147

Payable lrom rc tricted asset

Dcposits 56 930 56 930

Account payable 99 532 99 532
Current portion compeILtcdabences 46 272 29 988 2 107 78 367 23 907

CIIlTent portion capital leasepayable 146796 146 796 155 805

Current portion bonds payable 1 260 000 1 260 000

Contracts payable 165 201 67 174 232 375

Due to othcr funds 1 851 894 851 1l94
Oher accrued payables 539 695

Total current liabilities 5 W6N5 129 359 519 DL 5 52 907140

Long tenn liabilities

Compensated absenccs 11 248 13 606 6161 31 015 17 797

Capital lease payable 294 427 294 427 1143 O85

Bonds payable 6 575 000 75 O iQ
Totallong teml liabilities 6 586 248 13 606 3005118 900 442 EQ R

Towl liabilities 11 692 9 L 142 965 820 102 12 655 970 1 768 022

Net As es

Invested in capital asset

ndof related d bt 511 1l84 528 28 333 176 850 104 1l1l 067 808 2 210 755

Rcstricted 1

Construction 7 577489 4 694422 12 71 911
Debt serviee 360 754 360 754

Umcstricted 99 13 282 8117 Sl65 22L 1 441 6 2221 9

Total net a et 71 816 352 46 310485 Z l 3 S I 2414L 2L 9 602 6114

The note to the basic lIn I cial statcments are an integral part ofhis statement
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CITY OF WEST JORDAN

Statement of Revenues Expenses and Changes inFund Net Assets

Proprietary Funds

For the fiscal year ended June 30 2006

Business type Activities Enterprise Funds
Goverrunental

Activities

Total Business Internal

Water Sewcr Solid Waste type Funds Service Flll1ds

Operating revenues

Charges for services 10 078410 4439 627 3 239 427 17757 464 2 824 789

Operating e penses
Sources of supply 5 436 242 5 436 242

Depreciation 1 805 815 752 333 164 841 2 722 989 880 117

Salaries and benefits 992 054 728 814 57 523 1 778 391 510 323
Contracted services 2 809 1 691 707 1 694 516

Sewage treatment 2 269 902 2269 902
Fleet lease 102 J 46 166 138 28 995 297 279

Utilities and telephone 332 308 3 894 336 202
Professional and technical 53 157 34482 87 639 452 628

Interfund charges 1739 913 1 083 541 406 195 3 229 649

Garbage cans 246 160 246 160

Landfill 482 306 482 306

Supplies and maintenance 637 659 106 833 130 308 874 800 1 038 812

Total operating expenses 11 099 294 5 148 746 3 208 035 19 456 075 2 881 880

Operating income 1 020 884 709 119 31 392 1 698 611 57 091

Nonoperating revenues expenses

Equity in income loss

of joint ventures 766 887 45 286 721 601

Impact fees 3 094 670 2 170460 5 265 130

Interest eamings 490 247 200 078 61 029 751 354 274740
Interest expense 365 128 16 131 381 259 2 661

Intergovernmental revenue

Gain loss on disposal ofequipment 62 598

Total nonoperating
revenues expense 3 219 789 1 603 651 90 184 4 913 624 334 677

Income before operating transfers
and contributions 2 198 905 894 532 121 576 3 215 013 277 586

Contributions from developers 2 838145 1 475 835 4 313 980

Transfers in 20 921

Transfers out 19 146 51 775 70 921

Change in net assets 5 017 904 2 318 592 121 576 7 458 072 298 507

Net assets beginning 66437 694 43 991 893 5 893751 116 323 338 9 304 177

Net assets ending 71 455 598 46 310485 6 015 327 123 781 410 9 602 684

Thc notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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Increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash receivcd from customcrs

Cash rcccived from quasi cxtemal transactions

Cash payments for goods services

Cash payments fbr quasi external transactions

Cash payments to employees

Net cash provided by
operating activities

Cash flows from noncapital finandng activities

Intergovenunental revenue rcceived
Transfers in
Transfers out

Net cash provided by used in noncapital
financing activities

Cash flows from capital lmd related financing activities

Acquisition of capital assets

Proceeds from sale of capital assets

Principal payments hands

Interest paid on revenue bonds
Proceeds from capital leases

Bond issue costs paid
Payments on capital1cases
Interest paid on capital leases

Impact fees collected

Net cash provided by used in capital and related

financing activities

Cash flows fron investing activities

Investment illSVWRF

Purchase of water stock
Interfulld loans

Interest on investments

Net cash provided by used in

investing activities

Net increase in cash and

cash equivalents

Beginning cash cash equivalents and
restrictcd cash

Ending cash cash equivalents and
restricted cash

crIY OF VEST JORDAN

Proprietary Funds

Statcmcnt of Cash Flows

For the fiscal year ended June 30 2006

Water

9797 418

7 523 736

102146
1 001 085

1 170 451

19 146

l9 146

3 208 867

3 350 000

335 879

3 094 670

3 800 076

2 663 394
490 247

3 153 641

504 870

11607 983

Business type Activities

Nonmajor
Enterprise

Sewer Fund

4 482 970

3 858 967

166 138
742 409

284544

51 775

51 775

204 965

2 70 460

1 965 495

1 013 417

200D78

813339

815 837

4 402 062

l2 853 L2217 899

Statclllem continued on next page
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3 230 898

2 800 808

28 995

54 791

346 304

142 306
16 131

J 58 437

1 048 794

61 029

937 765

799 898

1 387 778

587 880

Total
Business type

Activities

17 511 286

14 183 511

297 279
1 798 285

1 232 211

70 921

70 921

3 413 832

3 350 000

335 879

142 306

16 13 I

5 265 130

1 993 018

1 013 417

1 614 600

751354

1 352 537

520 809

17 397 823

17 918 632

Governmcntal

Activities

Internal Service
Funds

2 824 789

1 435 064

521 354

868 371

20 921

20 921

1 789 820

93 988

1 107 807

187 341

2 661

778 02

274 740

274 740

386 005

7 700 806

8 086 811



CITY OF WEST JORDAN

Proprietary Funds

Statement of Cash flows cont

For thc fiscal year ended June 30 2006

Water

Business type Activities

Nonmajor
Enterprise

Sewer Fund

Total

Business type
Activities

Governmental
Activities

Internal Service

funds

Noncash Investing Capital and Financing Activities

Contributions of capital assets from devc10pers 2 838 145 1 475 835 2 838 145

Reconciliation of operating income to net caqh

provided by operating activities

Operating income 1 020 884 709 119 31392 1 698 611 57 091

Adjustments to operating income

Depreciation 1 805 815 752 333 164 841 2 722 989 880 117
Change in assets and liabilities

Accounts receivable 346 895 13 302 33 104 366 697
UnhiJled receivables 66426 30 042 24 575 121 043

Inventory 29 626 29 626 7 513

Accounts payable 881 639 284 237 155 868 753 270 47 882

Payroll payable 27 302 21 944 1 80 51 047 16 720
Other accrued payables 176 470 73 270 249 740 16 006

Compensated absences 18 271 8349 4533 31 153 5 690

Customer deposits 523 523

Total adjustments to operating income 2191 335 424 575 314 912 2 930 822 925 462

Net cash provided by
operating activities 1 170 451 284 544 346 304 1 232 211 868 371

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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CITY OF WEST JORDAN

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30 2006

CITY OF WEST JORDAN

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30 2006

NOTE 1

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The basic financial statements ofthe City of West Jordan Utah the City have been prepared in

conformity with generally accepted accounting principles GAAP as applied to governmental
units The Government Accounting Standards Board GASB is the accepted standard setting
body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles The more

significant ofthe Citys accounting policies are described below

A The Reporting Entity

The City incorporated in 1941 is a municipal corporation governed by an elected mayor and six

member council The reporting entity consists ofthe primary government and component units

Component units are entities for which the government is considered to be financially accountable

Blended component units although legally separate entities are in substance part ofthe

govemment s operations and so data from these units are combined with data ofthe primary
government The West Jordan Redevelopment Agency and the West Jordan Municipal Building
Authority are included as blended component units The Redevelopment Agency was legally
created as authorized by the Utah Neighborhood Development Act The City Council is

designated by ordinance as the governing body ofthe Agency Therefore the Agency is part ofthe

reporting entity and is reported as a Special Revenue Fund The Municipal Building Authority
MBA is also a separate legal entity and is reported as a Capital Projects Fund The MBA was

established to finance and construct municipal buildings that arc then leased to the City The City
Council serves as the board of trustees for the MBA and therefore the MBA is reported as if it

were pali ofthe primary government Separate 5nancial statements are not issued for either of

these component units The City has no discretely presented component units

B Basic Financial Statements Government wide Financial Statements

The basic financial statements include both govemment wide reporting the City as a whole and

fund financial statements reporting the City s major funds Both the government wide financial
statements and fund financial statements distinguish between those activities of the City that are

governmental and those that are considered business type activities

The statement of net assets and the statement of activities are government wide and include the

financial activities of the primary government Assets and liabilities are reported on a full accrual

economic resource basis which recognizes all long term assets and receivables as well as long
term debt and obligations The City s net assets are reported in thrce parts invested in capital
assets net of related debt restricted net assets and unrestricted net assets The City first utilizes
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CITY OF WEST JORDAN
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30 2006

restricted resources to finance qualifying activities The statement of net assets presents the
financial condition ofthe governmental and business type activities ofthe City as ofthe end ofthe
fiscal year

The statement ofactivities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a function are

offset by related program revenues Amounts reported as program revenues include charges to
customers for goods or services operating grants and capital grants Program revenues must be
directly associated with the function or business type activity Operating grants include operating
specific and discretionary either operating or capital grants while the capital grants column
reflects capital specific grants All tax revenue internally dedicated resources and impact fees are

classified as general revenues The net costs by function or business type activity are normally
covered by general revenues

The City does not allocate indirect costs

This government wide focus is more on the sustainability ofthe City as an entity and the change in
the City s net assets resulting from the current year s activities

C Basic Financial Statements Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements present financial information in more detail These statements focus
on the major funds Major individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are

presented in separate columns while nonmajor funds are aggregated and then presented in a single
column

The financial structure ofthe City has been organized on the basis of individual funds Each fund
is aself balancing set ofaccounts consisting ofits assets liabilities fund balance or retained

earnings revenue and expenditures or expenses Detail accounting records are maintained for each
individual fund however to provide maximum interest earnings on all idle funds ofthe City all
cash ofthe City is pooled for investment purposes Interest earnings are allocated based upon a

percentage method using the month end cash balances ofthe individual funds The various funds
are summarized by type in the basic financial statements

GOVERNMENT AL FUND TYPES

The focus ofthe governmental funds measurement in the fund financial statements is upon
determination of financial position sources uses and balances offinancial resources rather than

upon net income The following is a description of the governmcntal funds ofthe City

General Fund The General Fund is the primary operating fund of the City It is used to account

for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund
Administrative services rendered to othcr funds are charged to such funds and are shown as

charges for services
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Special Revenue Funds Special Revenue Funds are used to account for resources legally
restricted to expenditures for specified current operating purposes and for the enforcement of

special services and activities

Capital Projects Funds The Capital Projects Funds are used to account for financial resources to

be used for the acquisition or construction of the major capital faci Iities ofthe City other than those

financed by the proprietary funds

The following five funds are presented as major funds in the financial statements 1 the General

Fund 2 Redevelopment Agency Fund a special revenue fund that accounts for projects in the

City intended to stimulate and maintain economic growth 3 Capital Support Fund a capital
project fund used to account for the construction of buildings and other improvements 4 Road

Capital Improvement Fund a capital project fund used to account for major road projects and 5

Park Capital Improvement Fund acapital project fund used to account for major park projects

PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES

The focus ofproprietary fund measurement is upon the determination ofnet income changes in

net assets financial position and cash flows The generally accepted accounting principles
applicable are those similar to businesses in the private sector The City s proprietary funds consist

of

Enterprise Funds Enterprise Funds are used to account for operations that are financed and

operated in amaimer similar to private business enterprises where the intent ofthe governing body
is that the cost expenses including depreciation of providing goods or services to the general
public on acontinuing basis be financed or recovered plimarily through user charges

The existing enterprise funds account for construction operation maintenance related debt and

property plant and equipment within each fund The City owned utilities water sewer and solid

waste are presented as major funds

Internal Service Funds Internal Service Funds are used to account for the financing of goods or

services provided to other departments or agencics ofthe City on a cost reimbursement basis The

City maintains internal service funds for fleet management and insurance claims

D Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

The government wide financial statements and the proprietary fund statements are reported using
the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis ofaccounting Revenues are

recorded when earned and expenses are rccorded when a liability is incurred Thc proprietary fund

statements distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items Operating
revenues and expenses generally rcsult from providing services and delivering goods in connection
with aproprietary fund s principal ongoing operations Operating revenues are charges for

services Operating expenses include costs of services as well as materials contracts persOlmel

41



CITY OF WEST JORDAN
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30 2006

and depreciation All revenues and expenses not mecting these definitions are reported as

nonoperating revenues and expenses The City records utility revenues billedto its customers on a

monthly basis Unbilled services have been estimated and recorded as revenue and accounts
receivable at June 30 2006 The accounts receivable for these revenues are reported net ofthe
allowance for doubtful accounts 10 000 at June 30 2006

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources

measurement focus and the modified accrual basis ofaccounting Revenues are recognized when
they become measurable and available Available means collectible within the current period or

soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities ofthe current period For this purpose the City considers
revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days ofthe end ofthe current fiscal period
Property taxes sales taxes franchise taxes inter governmental revenues and interest earned in the
current period are accrued and reported as revenue All other rcvenues are not subject to accrual
because they arc either not available soonenough to pay liabilities ofthe current period or are not
measurable Expenditures arc recorded when fund liabilities are incurred Exceptions to this rule
are a principal and interest on long term debt are recorded as fund liabilities only when due and
b compensated absences are recorded as a liability only when payment is due Fund liabilities

and expenditures are recorded for compensated absence amounts when employment is terminated

The City applies to both government wide and proprietary funds statements all GASB
pronouncements and FASB statements and Interpretations APB Opinions and Accounting
Research Bulletins issued on or before November 30 1989 except those that conflict with a

GASB pronouncement Although the City has the option to apply FASB pronouncements issued
after that date to its business type activities and enterprise funds the City has chosen not to do so

The effect of interfund activity has generally been eliminated from the government wide financial
statements The exception to this rule is charges between the general fund and the water sewer

and solid waste functions Elimination ofthese charges would distort the direct costs and program
revenues reported for the various functions in the statement ofactivities

Eo Capital Assets

Capital assets are defined by the City as assets with acost of 5 000 or greater and an estimated
useful life ofat least three years Capital assets are recorded at historical costs or estimated
historical cost Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value as ofthe date of
donation Additions improvements and other capital outlays that significantly extend the useful
life of an asset are capitalized Other costs incurred for repairs and maintenance are expensed as

incurred Capital outlays are recorded as expenditures ofthe governmental funds and capital assets
ofthe proprietary funds All City infrastructure has been capitalized Infrastructure includes all

transportation corridors as we as storm sewer systems

All capital assets are depreciated using the straightline basis over the following estimated useful
lives Assets Years

Buildings 45
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Building Improvements

Computer Equipmcnt

Machinery and equipment

IS

3

5 15

Vehicles 5 15

Improvements other than Buildings 20

Roads 30

Sidewalk 45

Storm sewer 45

Water and sewcr systcms SO

F Cash Cash Equivalents and Investments

Cash and cash equivalents include amounts in demand deposits as wcll as short term investments

with an original maturity date of less than 90 days Investments are stated at their fair value or

amortizcd cost at June 30 2006

G Restricted Assets

Restricted assets include cash and investments that are legally restricted to their use Impact fees

arcrestrictcd within the capital projects water and sewer funds Also cash and investmcnts are

held by trustces for the debt service payments on bonded debt and for acquisition and construction

ofcapital projects

H Inventory

Inventory is valued at cost that approximates market using the first in first out method FIFO

Reported inventories are equally offset by a fund balancc reserve which indicates that they do not

constitute available spendable resources evcn though they are acomponent of net current assets

I Prepaid expenditures

Prepaid expenditures in the special revenues fund consist of cxpenditures relating to the Westem

Stampede Rodeo As these cxpenditures are paid by the City between January I 2006 through
June 30 2006 that relate to the next fiscal ycar rodeo the Cityrecords these items as prepayments
Prepaid expenditures are equally offset by a fund balance reserve indicating that they do not

constitute available expendable resources evcn though thcy arc a component of nct cmTcnt assets

However in the government wide statements thesc amounts are reported as prepaid expenses
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J Investments in Joint Ventures

The City has an investment in the South Valley Water Reclamation Facility SVWRF a joint
venture The City s 28 22 percent owned joint venture is accounted for by the equity method The

City s equity interest means that the City has an explicit measurable right to the net present or

future resources of the joint venture Under the equity method the Sewer Fund Enterprise Fund
records its share ofthe joint venture s net income or loss for each period The City also includes its
share of advances for capital improvements in this investment SVWRF is governed by its board of
directors The City appoints one ofthe SVWRF s five directors This joint venture does not meet
the criteria for inclusion in the City s financial report as a component unit because the City does
not exercise administrative control The complete financial statements for the SVWRF for the year
ended December 31 2005 can be obtained from SVWRF management at 7495 South 1300 West
West Jordan Utah 84084

The investment in Trans Jordan Cities Landfill a 26 15 percent owned joint venture is accounted
for by the equity method The City s equity interest represents its explicit measurable right to the
net present or future resources of the joint ventures Under this method the Solid Waste Fund

Enterprise Fund records its share of the joint venture s net income or loss for each period This

joint venture does not meet the criteria for inclusion in the City s financial reports as a component
unit because the City does not exercise administrative control The complete financial statements

for the Trans Jordan Landfill for the year ended June 30 2006 can be obtained from the Trans
Jordan Landfill at 10873 South 7200 West South Jordan Utah 84095

K Compensated absences

Vacation is earned on a biweekly basis in varying anlOunts as determined by an employee s years
of service Proprietary funds recognize an expense for all accrued vacation amounts when the
vacation is earned Governmental funds report an expenditure when vacation is paid or at

termination Comp time is earned by non exempt employees and is treated similarly to vacation
Non exempt employees can earn amaximum of80 hours ofcomp time annually

Employees also accumulate sick leave on a biweekly basis Each year employees are eligible to be

paid out 25 of their current year accrued unused sick leave Governmental funds report an

expenditure when the sick leave is paid Proprietary funds recognize 25 of the current year
accrued unused sick leave at the end ofthe fiscal year

The noncurrent portion of these amounts for government funds is recognized within the

government wide statements and will appear as a reconciling item between the fund and

government wide statements and the fund statements The liability for compensated absences in
the governmental funds is typically liquidated through the general fund

L Bond Issuance Costs

Bond issuance costs are amortized over the term ofthe bonds using the effective interest method
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M Deferred Revenue

Deferred revenuc is reported when asset recognItIOn occurs before the revenue is available

Property taxes are collected by the Salt Lake County Treasurer and remitted to the City shortly
after collection Taxes are due and payable on November I and are delinquent after November 30

ofeach year These property taxes have becn reported as defcrred revenue in governmental funds

N Interfund Transactions

During the course of normal operations the City has transactions between funds to distribute

administrative costs and construct assets These transactions are gcnerally reflected as transfers

In addition loans have been made between funds and arc reflected as due to due from on the

respective funds balance sheets

o Revenues Exchange and Non exchange Transactions

Revenue resulting from exchange transactions in which each party gives and receives essentially
equal value is reported on the accmal basis when the exchange takes place On a modified accrual

basis revcnue is reported in the year in which the resources are measurable and become available

Nonexchange transactions in which the City receives value without directly giving equal value in

return include property taxes grants and donations On an accmal basis revenue from property
taxes is recognizcd in the year for which the taxes arc levied Revenue from grants entitlements

and donations is rccognized in the year in which all cligibility requirements havc been satisfied

Eligibility requiremcnts includc timing requirements matching requirements and expenditure
requirements On a modified accrual basis revenue from a noncxchange transaction must also be
available before it can be recognized

Property taxes and special asscssments are measurable and susceptible to accmal when they attach

as an enforceable lien on the property They become available when they are due Amounts that
are measurable but not available are recorded as deferred revenue Property taxes become an

enforceable lien on January 1 but are not due until November 30 Special assessments become an

enforceable lien when assessed

P Fund Equity Reserves

Fund balance in the fund financial statements governmental funds report reservations of fund
balance for amounts that arc not available for appropriation or are legally segregated for a specific
purpose
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Restricted net assets in the government widctinancial statements as well as the proprietary fund
financial statements restrictcd net assets are legally rcstricted by outside parties for a specific
purpose narrower in scope than thc fund

Q Contributions of Capital

Contributions of capital in the proprietary fund financial statements arise from outside
contributions of capital assets or from grants or outside contributions of resources restricted to

capital acquisition and construction

R Estimates and assumptions

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues expenditures and expenses during the

reporting period Actual results could differ from those estimates

S Budgets

Utah State Statute establishes budgetary procedures for the City The basis of accounting applied
to each fund budget is the same basis as the related fund s financial statements Accordingly the

Budgetary Comparison Schedule for the General Fund presents actual expenditures in accordance
with the accounting principles generally accepted in the United States on a basis consistent with
the legally adopted budget as amended

In accordance with state law all appropriations lapse at the end of the budget year However
unexpended capital projects may be reappropriated The following are the legal procedures
followed by the City

1 On or before the first regularly scheduled meeting of the City Council in May the City
Manager authorized under state statute to be appointed Budget Officer submits a proposed
operating budget for all governmental fund types and an operating and capital budget for all

proprietary fund types for the subsequent fiscal year The budget documents are financing sources

and include the proposed budget amounts requested by the department heads along with the

proposed budget amounts requested by the City Manager

2 A public hearing is held to receive input on all aspects ofthe proposed budget The hearing is

preceded by a notice in the local newspaper The notice is given at least seven days before the

hearing and includes the time date and place ofthe hearing All budget documents are required to
be available for public inspection ten days prior to the public hearing

3 On or before June 30 a final balanced budget must be adopted for the subsequent fiscal year
beginning July 1 If a tax increase is proposed a hearing must be held on or before August 10 At
this time the final balanced budget is adopted
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4 The City Manager acting as Budget Officer has the budgct authority to transfer budget
appropriations bctween individual line items within any department of any budgetary fund

5 The City Council by resolution has the authority to transfer budget appropriations between

the individual departments ofany budgetary fund

6 A public hearing as required in 2 above must be held to increase the total appropriations of

anyone govcrnmental fund type howcver after the original public hearing operating and capital
budgets ofproprictary fund types may be increased by resolution without an additional hearing

7 The appropriate director or department head is the authorized officer charged with the

responsibility of sta ng within the department budgct and authorizing no expenditures in excess of

said budget as requircd by the Utah Fiscal Procedures Act

8 Monthly financial rep0l1s are prepared by the Dircctor of Financc and Administrative Services

and rcviewed by the City Manager They arc also presented to the City Council These reports
contain a budgetary statemcnt showing a comparison ofbudget to actual for all budgetary funds of

the City

9 Utah State law prohibits the appropriation of unrcstricted Gencral Fund balance until it

exceeds the sum of 5 of the General Fund revenues Until unrcserved fund balance is greater
than the above amount it cannot be budgeted but is used to provide working capital until tax

revenue is received meet emergency expenditures and cover unanticipated dcficits When

unreserved fund balance is greater than 18 of expected revenues the excess must be appropriated
within the following two years

10 Budgets for the governmental funds are prepared on the modified accrual basis of accounting
Accordingly the Budgetary Comparison Schedule for the General Fund presents actual

expenditures in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in the United States

on a basis consistent with the legally adopted budgets as amended Encumbrances lapse at year
end and are automatically reappropriated and reencumbered as part of the subsequent year s

budget

NOTE 2

Cash Cash Equivalents and Investments
The City s deposits and investing are governed by the Utah Moncy Management Act Utah Code

Title 51 Chapter 7 and rules ofthe State ofUtah Money Management Council Also the City has

47



CITY OF WEST JORDAN
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30 2006

its own written investment policies City funds are invested only in the following 1 negotiable or

nonnegotiable deposits ofqualified depositories see definition of qualified depository included
above 2 repurchase agreements with qualified depositories or certified dealers acting as

principal for securities ofthe United States Treasury or other authorized investments only if these
securities are delivered to the custody of the City Treasurer or the City s safekeeping bank or are
conducted with a qualified depository 3 commercial paper which is rated P 1 by Moody s
Investor Services or A l by Standard and Poor s Inc and having a remaining term to maturity of
270 days or less commercial paper can be purchased directly from the issuer provided proper
delivery and safekeeping procedures are followed with a qualified depository or the CityTreasurer s safekeeping bank or trust company 4 bankers acceptance that are eligible for
discount at a federal reserve bank and which have aremaining term to maturity of270 days or less

5 negotiable certificates of deposit of 1 00 000 or more which have a remaining term to maturityof 365 days or less 6 obligations ofthe United States Treasury including United States TreasuryBills United States Treasury Notes and United States Treasury Bonds and 7 the Utah Public
Treasurer s Investment Fund which is a pooled investment fund managed by the Utah State
Treasurer

The City maintains pooled cash and investments that are available for use by all funds The pooledinterest earned is allocated to the funds based on average month end cash and investment balances

Cash
Utah Public Treasurer s Investment Fund

14 745 045

48171 618

Total 62 916 663

Included in the accompanying balance sheet as follows
Cash and cash equivalents 25 405 652
Restricted assets cash and cash equivalents 37511 011

Total
Q2

V 6 663

A Cash Deposits

Custodial Credit Risk
The custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that in the event of a bank failure the City s

deposits may not be recovered The Money Management Act requires deposits to be placed with a
qualified depository The Money Management Act defines a qualified depository as any financial
institution whose deposits are insured by an agency ofthe federal government and which has been
certified by the State Commissioner of Financial Institutions as meeting the requirements of the
Money Management Act and adhering to the rules ofthe Utah Money Management Council

At June 30 2006 the book value of cash on deposit was 14 745 045 and the bank balance was

15 166 680 with the difference being outstanding checks and outstanding deposits Because these
funds were deposited in two separate financial institutions 200 000 was covered by federal
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deposit iy insuran The remaini g bank bala ce of 14 966 680 was ninsll d Deposit rc not

collateralized nor arc they required to be by Statc statutc

B Investments

The Moncy Management Act defines the types ofsecurities authorized as appropriate investments

and the conditions for making investment transactions Investment transactions may be conducted

only through qualified depositories certified dealers or directly with issuers ofinvestment

securities

As of June 30 2006 the City had the following investment and maturity
Investment

Investment Type Fair Value Maturiy

Debt Securities

Utah Public Treasurer s Investment Fund 48 171 618 70 days

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk in the risk that changes in interest rates of debt investments will adversely affect

the value of an investment The City s policy for managing its exposure to interest rate risk is to

comply with the Money Management Act Section 51 7 11 of thc Act requires that the rcmaining
tem1 to maturity of investments may not exceed the period of availability of the funds to be

invested The Money Management Act furthcr limits the rcmaining term to maturity on all

investments in commercial paper bankers acceptances fixed rate ncgotiable deposits and fixed

rate corporate obligations to 270 days or less In addition variable rate negotiable deposits and

variable rate securities may not have a remaining term to final maturity exceeding two years

Credit Risk of Debt Securities

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its

obligations The City complies with the Money Management Act as its policy for reducing
exposure to investment credit risk

The City s only investment is with thc Utah Public Treasurer s Invcstment Fund and the Fund is

unrated as to credit risk

Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that in the event ofa failure of the counterparty
the City will not be able to recover the value of the investment or collateral securities that arc in

the possession ofan outside party The City does not have a formal policy for managing custodial

credit risk

All of the City s investments at June 30 2006 were with the Utah Public Treasurer s Investment
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Fund and therefore are not categorized as to custodial credit risk Additional information regarding
the Utah Public Treasurer s Investment Fund is available in Note 3

Concentration of Credit Risk Investments
Concentration of credit risk is the risk of a loss attributed to the magnitude of a government s

investment in asingle issuer

The Citys policy for reducing the risk of loss is to comply with the Rules of the Money
Management Council Rule 17 of the Money Management Council limits investments in a single
issuer ofcommercial paper and corporate obligations to between 5 10 depending upon the total
dollar amount held in the portfolio The Money Management Council limitations do not apply to

securities issued by the US government and its agencies

All of the City s investments at June 30 2006 were with the Utah Public Treasurer s Investment
Fund and therefore are not categorized as to custodial credit risk Additional information regarding
the Utah Public Treasurer s Investment Fund is available in Note 3

Restricted Assets and Reserved Fund Equity
Assets are reported as restricted when external constraints are placed on the use of the assets and
these constraints changes the normal understanding ofthe availability ofthe asset Such constraints
are either imposed by creditors or imposed by law

General Fund Developer and other deposits of 1 620 974 Class C Road funds of 5 994 705
and reserves for debt service of 465 957 totaling 8 081 636 are shown as restricted assets to be
used only for the purpose defined by contract or under legal provisions Customer deposits of

1 620 974 represent a liability therefore fund balance need not be reserved

Redevelopment Agency Cash in the amount of 866 294 is restricted for debt service and fund
balance has been reserved in the same amount

Park Capital Improvement Fund Cash totaling 6 244 066 is restricted for park impact fee
revenues in the amount of 1 992 375 and for construction in the amount of 4 2SI 691 Fund
balance is reserved for the construction amount

Building Capitalln1provement Fund Cash in the amount of 240 724 is restricted for projects and
fund balance has been reserved in the same amount
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Municipal Building Authority Cash in the amount of 797 100 is restricted for debt service and

fund balance has been reserved in the same amount

Capital upport Fund 1 476 972 is restricted for debt service and fund balance has been reserved

for the same amount

Road Capital Improvcmem Funq 689 653 is restricted for road impact fee reserves Fund
balance has no reserve

Storm Capital Improvement Fund 2 307 292 is restricted for stom1 water impact fee reservcs

Fund balance has no reserve

Water Fund Water impact fees of 7 557 489 are included in restricted caslL Net assets are

restricted for construction in thc amount of the impact fees Cash in the amount of 4 506 071 is

also included in restricted cash because its use is limited in bond covenants Net assets are

restricted for debt service in amount of 360 754 which is included in the cash restricted for bond
covenants The remaining amount of restricted cash is made up of customer deposits Net assets

are not restricted for customer deposits because they arc included in liability amounts

s wer Fund Sewer impact fees of 4 694 422 are rcstricted for construction of capital assets Nct
assets are restricted for construction in the amount of the impact fees

NOTE 3

External Investment Pool

The Public Treasurer s Investment Fund PTIF is not registered with the SEe as an investment

company The PTIF is authorized and regulated by the Money Management Act Chapter 51 7
Utah Code Annotated 1953 as amended The Act establishes the Money Management Council
which oversees the activities of the State Treasurer and the PTIF The Act details the investments
that are authorized which are high grade securities and therefore there is very little credit risk

except in the most unusual and unforeseen circumstances Deposits in the PTIF are not insured or

otherwise guaranteed by the State of Utah and participants share proportionally in any realized

gains or losses on investmcnts

The PTIF allocates income and issues statements on a monthly basis The PTIF operates and

reports to participants on an amortized cost basis Thc participants balance is thcir investment

deposited in the PTrF plus their share of income gains and losses net of administration fces
which are allocated to each participant on the ratio of each participant s share to the total funds in
the PTIF
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Twice a year at June 30 and December 31 the investments are valued at air value to enable
participants to adjust their investments in this pool at fair value The Bank of New York and the
State ofUtah separately determine each security s fair value in accordance with GASB 31 i e for
almost all pool investments the quoted market price as ofJune 30 2006 and then compare those
values to come up with an agreed upon fair value ofthe securities

As of June 30 2006 the City had 48 171 618 invested in the PTIF which had a fair value of
48 156 203 for a loss of 15415 Due to the insignificance of this an10unt in relation to the funds

affected by the unrealized loss the fair value ofthe investments in this external investment pool is
deemed to be the amortized cost ofthe investment

The table below shows statistical information about the investment pool

Investment Type

Corporate bonds and notes

Money market accounts and

Certificates of deposit
U S Government securities

Investment

Percentage
6546

4 82

29 72

100 00

The Remainder ofThis Page Intentionally Left Blank
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NOTE 4

Capital Assets

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30 2006 was as follows

Beginning Ending

Balance 1 ncreases Decreases Balance

Governmental activities

Capital assets notbeing depreciated
Land 121 236 042 460 889 121 696 931

Construction in progre 5 615469 1 467 877 5 615 468 1 467 878

Total capital assets not being depreciated 126 X51 511 1 928 766 5 615 468 123 164 809

Capital a sets bcing depreciated
Machinery and equipment 12 I 98297 1 902 345 583 096 13 517 546

Computer equipment 2 018 686 147 008 2 165 694

Buildings and buiIding improvements 17 685 993 7 994 745 25 680 738

Improvements other than buildings 16 690 342 726 361 17 416 703

Infrastructure 192 974 901 3 377 794 196 352 695

Total capital assets being depreciated 24 568 219 14 148 253 583 096 255 133 376

Less accumulated depreciation for

Machinery and equipment 8 802 874 1 105 723 551 706 9 356 891

Computer equipment 1901 009 122 372 2 023 381

Buildings and building improvements 3 704 643 606 055 4 310 698

Improvements other than buildings 4 621 705 847 039 5 468 744

Infrastructure 71 643 146 5 627 241 77 270 387

Total accumulated depreciation f0 673 377 8 308 429 551 706 98430 I 00

Total capital assets being depreciated net 150 894 842 5 839 824 31 390 156 703 276

Governmental activities capital assets net 277 746353 7 768 590 5 646 858 279 868 085
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Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance

Business type activities

Capital assets not being depreciated
Land 437 901 49 162 487 063

Total capital assets not being depreciated 437 90 I 49 162 487 063

Capital assets being depreciated
Buildings 321 357 321 357

Improvements other than buildings 118416 124 7 264 020 125 680 144

Machinery and equipment 1 994 007 414 651 2 408 658

Total capital assets being depreciated 120 731 488 7 678 671 128 4101 59

Less accumulated depreciation for

Buildings 152 344 7 163 J 59 507

Improvements other thanbuildings 26 645 021 2 492 340 29 137 361
Machinery and equipment 485 644 223 506 709 150
Total accumulated depreciation 27 283 009 2 723 010 30 006 019

Total capital assets being depreciated net 93 448 479 4 955 661 98 404 140

Business type activities capital assets net 93 886 380 5 004 823 98 891 203

Depreciation expense was charged to functions programs of the primary government as follows

Governmental activities

General government
Police

Fire

Public works includes depreciation on general infrastructure assets

Parks and recreation

749 639

535 276

448 900

5 653 703

920 91

8 308 429

1 805 836

752 333

164 841

2 723 010

Total depreciation expense governmental activities

Business type activities

Water

Sewer

Solid waste

Total depreciation expense business type activities
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NOTE 5

LQ1g term debt

Beginning Fnlling Due Within

Governmental Activities Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year

Rands payable
Lease revenue refunding bonds 3355 000 300 000 3 055 000 315 000

Lease revenue bonds 3155 000 125 000 3 030 000 125 000

Excise tax road bonds 2 925 000 440 000 2 485 000 460 000

Sales tax revenue bonds 10 645 000 1 355 000 9 290 000 1 400 000

Tax increment revenue bonds 2004 835 000 165 000 670 000 135 000

Tax increment revenue bonds 2005 8 020 000 8 020 000

Interim Wan ants 495 000 495 000 495 000

General obligation bond J 0455 000 345 000 10 110 000 355 000

Total bonds payable 31 370 000 8 515 000 2 730 000 37 155 000 3 285 000

Other liabilities

Capital leases 78 424 1 107 807 187 341 998 890 151 047

Contract payable 1 800 000 85000 1 715 000 90 000

Compensated absences 2 226 528 544 839 170 297 2 601 070 982 853

Notes payable to developers 1 600 690 134 403 1 466 287 251 500

Total other liabilities 5705 642 1 652 646 577 041 6 781 247 1 475400

Governmental activities long term

liabilities 37 075 642 10 167 646 3 307 041 43 936 247 4 760 400

Business type Activities

Water bond 8 600 000 3 I 00 0 0 5 500 000 1 000 000

Water bond 2004 2 585 000 250 000 2 335 000 260 000

Total bonds payable 1 L185 000 3 350 000 7 835 000 1 260 000

Other liabilities

Capital1cascs 583 529 J42 306 441 223 146 796

Compensated absences 78 229 34 023 2 870 109 382 78 367

Total other liabilities 661 758 34 023 145 176 550 605 225163

Business type activities long term

liabilities 11 846 758 34 023 3 495 176 8 385 605 1 485163

Long term obligations at J line 30 2006 consist of the following

Governmental activities

General Obligation Bonds

The City issued 2004 general obligation bonds in the amount of

10 920 000 to construct a justice building and for open space
acquisition The bonds are due in annual installments of 345 000 to
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795 000 through April of 2025 interest at 3 0 percent to 5 25 percent
repaid by the City s property tax revenue

Tax Increment Revenue Bonds

The City issued 2004 tax increment revenue bonds in the anlOunt of

1 000 000 to repay developers for improvements made in a

redevelopment area The bonds are due in annual installments of

135 000 to 250 000 through February l 2010 interest at 4 2 percent
to be repaid by taxes levied on property in one of the City s

redevelopment areas

The City issued 2005 tax increment revenue bonds in the all10unt of

8 020 000 to pay for infrastructure and improvements in the

redevelopment area The bonds are due in annual installments of

530 000 and 865 000 through June of 2018 4 790 percent to 5355

percent to be repaid by taxes levied on property in one of the City s

redevelopment areas

The City issued interim warrants in the amount of 495 000 in the

expectation of a bond issuance during the 2007 fiscal year The
warrants will be paid in full from the bond proceeds The interest rate

is variable

Lease Revenue Bonds

The City issued 1998 lease revenue bonds in the all10unts of 4 995 000
to advance refund 1992 lease revenue bonds The bonds are due in

annual principal installments of 250 000 to 955 000 through
December 2012 Interest at 3 8 percent to 4 7 percent secured by City
Hall and to be repaid by the Municipal Building Authority

The City issued 2001 lease revenue bonds in the amount of 3490 000
to construct furnish and equip a new fire station The bonds are due in

annual principal installments of 105 000 to 795 000 through June

2016 Interest at 34 percent to 4 7 percent secured by a fire station and

related fixtures furniture and equipment and to be repaid by the

Municipal Building Authority

Excise Tax Road Bonds

The City issued 2001 excise tax road bonds in the all10unt of 4 580 000

to finance the construction ofa major road The bonds are due in annual

principal installments of 420 000 to 540 000 through June 201l
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Interest at 3 25 percent to 4 75 pcrcent to be repaid by C Road excise

tax funds received from the State of Utah

Sales Tax Revenue Bonds

The City issued 2001 sales tax revenue bonds in the amount of

14460 000 to finance improvements to infrastructure within the City
The bonds are due in annual principal installments of 1 235 000 to

1 725 000 through March 2012 Interest at 3 percent to 5 5 percent to

be repaid by sales tax collections

Contracts Payaple
The City borrowed 2 090 000 from BUD to finance the construction of

a senior center The contract payable is due to HUD in annual principal
installments of 65 000 to 155 OOO through August of 2019 Interest at

7 5 percent to 7 9 percent

Capital Leases

The City has entered into a lease agreement as lessee for financing the

acquisition of a new ambulance for the fire department The original
amount of the lease was 142489 The terms of the lease require
monthly payments of 2 670 through Janum y 2008 at which time

ownership will transfer to the City The stated rate of interest in the

lease agreement is 4 09 percent

The City has entered into a lease agreement as lessee for financing the

acquisition ofa new sewer vactor truck street sweeper and fire engine
The original amount of the lease was 1 107 807 The tern1S ofthe lease

require annual payments of 157 961 through December 2012 at which

time ownership will transfer to the City The stated rate of interest in the

lease agreement is 3 95 percent

Tax Increment Notes Payable to Developers
The City has entered into agrccments with developers through the

Redevelopment Agency to reimburse various developers for

improvements made in redevelopment areas The terms of the notes

require the City to make principal payments of 75 percent of the

increment money collected for the project areas The notes are interest
free

Compensated Absences

Total Governmental Activities
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Business type activities

Water Revenue Bonds

The program revenue bonds in the amount of 10 500 000 were issued
in March 2003 to finance water system expansion and improvements
throughout the City The bonds are due in annual principal installments
of 900 000 to 1 200 000 through June of 2013 These bonds are

variable rate debt and are remarketed weekly The interest rate is based
on the market conditions the day the bonds are remarketed The
effective interest rate at year end was 33 percent 5 500 000

The program revenue bonds in the amount of 2 865 000 were issued in
November 2004 to finance a radio read water meter replacement
program throughout the City The bonds are due in annual principal
installments of 250 000 to 325 000 through June 2014 These bonds
are variable rate debt and are remarketed weekly The interest rate is
based on the market conditions the day the bonds are remarketed The
effective interest rate at year end was 3 3 percent 2 335 000

Capital Leases

The City has entered into a lease agreement as lessee for financing the

acquisition ofnew recycling bins for automated residential pickup The

original amount of the lease was 800 000 The terms of the lease

require monthly payments of 13 203 through August 2009 at which

time ownership will transfer to the City The stated rate ofinterest in the
lease agreement is 3 11 percent 441 223

Compensated Absences 109382

Total Business type Activities 8385 605

Over the past several years the City defeased debt relating to the 1992 Municipal Building
Authority lease revenue bonds The defeased portion of the 1992 Municipal Building Authority
lease revenue bonds was 3 275 000 at June 30 2006

58



CITY OF WEST JORDAN

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30 2006
w

As ofJune 30 2006 annual debt service requirements to maturity arc as follows

Governmental Activities Bonds

Lease revenue Lease revenue Excise tax

Year Ended refunding
June 30 Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest

2007 315 000 133 154 125 000 132 476 460 000 108 175

2008 325 000 118 833 135 000 127 370 475 000 89 775

2009 340 000 103 785 140 000 121 870 500 000 71 725

2010 355 000 88 063 150 000 115 995 510 000 48 600

2011 375 000 71 450 150 000 109 770 540 000 25 650

2012 2016 1345 000 76 297 1 535 000 313 425

2017 2021 795 000 37365
Total 3 055 000 591582 3 030 000 958 271 2 485 000 J13 925

Governmental Activities Bonds

Sales tax Tax increment General obligation
Year Ended

June 30 Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest

2007 1400 000 422375 135 000 440 083 355 000 479 850

2008 1 480 000 369 875 940 000 434413 370 000 468 312

2009 1 500 000 310 675 LO I 0 000 390 213 380 00 455 363

20JO L550 000 250 675 1 085 000 341 565 395 000 441 588

2011 1635 000 J 84 800 790 000 289315 410 000 426 775

2012 2016 1 725 000 94 875 3500 000 865 982 2320 000 1 865325
2017 2021 1230 000 94 425 2 930 000 1 247 788

2022 2026 2 950 000 397 163

Total 9 290 000 1 633 275 8 690 000 2 855 993 10 110 000 5 782163
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Governmental type Business type Activities

Activities Contracts Revenue Bond

Contract 2003 Water revenue 2004 Water revenue

Year Ended Year Ended

June 30 Principal Interest June 30 Principal Interest Principal Interest

2007 90 000 127 805 2007 1 000 000 266 000 260 000 77 055

2008 95 000 121 167 2008 1 000 000 23 000 270 000 68 475

2009 100 000 114 128 2009 1 000 000 196 000 275 000 59 565

2010 105 000 106 740 2010 1 100 000 161 000 285 000 50 490

201 110 000 98 865 2011 1 100 000 122 500 300 000 40 995

2012 2016 625 000 358 402 2012 2016 300 000 126 000 945 000 63 030

201 7 2021 590 000 95 602 2017 2021

Total 1 715 000 1 022 709 Total 5 500 000 1 102 500 2 335 000 359 610

Amortization ofcompensated absences interim warrants and the tax increment note payable to

developer have not been included in the above schedules due to the uncertainty ofthe timing of the

payments

NOTE 6

Capital leases

The City has entered into certain capital lease agreements under which the related equipment will

become the property ofthe City when the terms of the lease agreement are met The following is a

schedule by year offuture minimum lease payments as of June 30 2006

Fiscal Year

Ending June 30

2007

2008

2009

2010

Governmental Business Type
Activities Activities

190 003 158437
176 652 158 437

157 691 145 234

157 691

473 073

1 156461 462 108

157 571 20 885

998 890 441 223

Thereafter

Total minimum lease payments
Less Amount representing interest

Present value ofnet minimum
lease payments

Equipment and related

accumulated depreciation under

capitallease are as follows

Cost ofequipment
Accumulated depreciation

1 756 551

675 655

800 000

80 000
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NOTE 7

Retirement Plans

Plan Description The City contributes to the following cost sharing multiple employer defined
benefit retirement plans administered by the Utah State Retirement Systems USRS

o Local Government Contributory Retirement System
o Local Govenuuent Noncontributory Retirement System
LJ Public Safety Contributory Retirement System
o Public Safety Noncontributory Retirement System
o Firefighters Retirement System

The Systems provide refunds retirement benefits annual cost of living adjustments and death
benefits to plan members and bencficiaries in accordance with retirement statutes

Thc Systems are established and governed by the respective sections of Chapter 49 of the Utah
Code Atmotated 1953 as amended The Utah State Retirement Office Act in Chapter 49 provides
for the administration of the Utah Retirement Systems and Plans under the direction of the Utah
State Retirement Board whose members are appointcd by the Governor The Systems issue a

publicly available financial report that includes tinancial statements and required supplementary
information for the Local Governmental Contributory Retirement System Local Governmental

Noncontributory Retirement System Public Safety Retiremcnt System for employers without
Social Security coverage and Firefighters Retirement System which are for employers without
Social Security coverage A copy of this report may be obtained by writing to the USRS 540 East
200 South Salt Lake City UI 84102 or by calling 1 800 365 8772 Funding Policy The
contribution rates are the actuarially determined rates The contribution requirements of the

Systems are authorized by the statute and specified by the Board

Local Governmental Contributory
Local Govenm1ental Noncontributory
Public Safety Contributory
Public Safety Noncontributory
Firefighters System

Employee
contribution paid

by City
6 00

7 65

Citys

Contribution
7 08

1109

15 32

2232

18 007 65
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Ended Employee paid City s

S ystem June 30 contributions contribution
Local Governmental Contributory 2006 13 044 15 393

2005 12 642 l4 918
2004 12 301 11 502

Local Governmental Noncontributory 2006 930 306
2005 846 830
2004 662 289

Public Safety Contributory 2006 37 139 74 374
2005 39 095 77 679
2004 37420 60 263

Public Safety Noncontributory 2006 949 070
2005 872 059
2004 681 334

Firefighters System 2006 28 325 6 619
2005 262 552 6 615
2004 245 9l7 5 788

Contributions were equal to the required contributions

NOTE 8

Deferred Compensation Plan

The City offers its employees a deferred compensation plan the plan through leMA Retirement

Corporation or through the Utah State Retiremcnt System USRS created in accordance with
Internal Revenue Code IRC Section 457 The ICMA plan available to all City employees
permits them to defer a portion of their salary until future years Participation in this plan is

optional The USRS plan is only available to part time employees on a noncontributory basis Both
investment plans are managed by the plans trustee under one of four investment options or a

combination thereof The choice ofinvestment option s is made by the participants The deferred

compensation is not available to employees until termination retirement death or unforeseeable
emergency These investments are within the legal provisions ofthe State ofUtah

Defined Contribution Money Purchase Plan The City also participates in an insured contributory
defined contribution retirement plans administered by ICMA Retirement Corporation Under the

plan the City contributes amounts from 0 percent to 24 5 percent depending on which defined

contribution system each employee class belongs to Employees are classified as follows
Management General Employees Police and Fire
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An employee is vestcd immediately with the first contribution to ICMA Retircmcnt Corporation
Presently the City is under its own obligation by resolution to continuc with contributions to the

plans No other federal or State laws obligate the City to participate in this plan The program is

pursuant to section 401 A and 401 C the Internal Revenue Service Code Withdrawals of monies

per Federal Law are subject to a mandatory withdrawal penalty in the amount of 10 unless the

employee has attained the age of 59 1 2 All of the City s full time employees participate in the

ICMA Retirement Corporation The payroll for the employees covered by the plans was

l7 02l 147 The City s total payroll for the year ended June 30 2006 was 21 728 690 The

contribution requirement for the year ended June 30 2006 was 1 975 762

NOTE 9

Segment Information

The City has issued water revenue bonds to finance certain improvements to its culinary water

distribution system Bccause this activity is accounted for in a separate fund and the fund is

reported as a major fund in the fund financial statements segment disclosures hcrein are not

requircd

Redevelopment Agency

Tax increment money was generated by the following project areas within the Redevelopment
Agency

Area 8600 South 3200 3600 West

1 700 West 6600 7000 South

7800 South 1300 1600 West

9000 South 1300 1700 West

Independence Sq uare Area

Total

32 240
200 000
127 823
400 000

225 000

285 Q2

During the year the RDA expended monies in the categories below as follows

Administration Costs

Infrastructure

Development Incentive

Interest and Fiscal Charges
Principal
Transfer to other fund

Total

34 080

174403
6 868 636

481491
165 000

692 338

A12 1

Outstanding loans to finance RDA projects as of

June 30 2006 11 696 070
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NOTE 10

Interfund Receivables and Pavables Transfers

Interfund receivables and payables as June 30 2006 were as follows

Due From

Non major governmental
Redevelopment agency
Water

Water

Due To

General

General

General

Solid Waste

Amount

607 111

42461
803 100

1 048 794

The interfund receivable payables are related to operating funds temporarily loaned one fund to

another The general fund made a loan to a special revenue fund to cover operating expenditures
and the water fund loaned to the capital improvement fund construction ofa soccer complex The
intcrfund payables from the Redevelopment Agency are related to reimbursement agreements
made to reimburse the city for infTastructure improvements and land

Transfers In I Transfers Out

Interfund transfers during the year ended June 30 2006 were as follows
The purpose of the transfers is to distribute administrative costs an10ngst the funds or to construct

assets

Transfers in

Capital Road Parks

General SUpport Capital Capital Non major Internal
Transfers Out Fund Improvements Improvements Improvement Governmental Service Total

General fund 2 530 000 1 928 389 567440 804 990 5 830 819

Redevelopment Agency 692 338 692 338

Capital suport 279 755 210 724 960 140 1 450 619
Water 19 146 19 146
Sewer 50 000 1 775 51 775

Total 742 338 2 530 000 2 208 144 778 164 1 765 130 20 921 8 044 697

NOTE 11

Risk Management

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts theft dan1age to or destruction of
assets errors and omissions injuries to employees and natural disasters The City maintains a

self insurance fund to finance its risk of loss The self insurance fund provides coverage up to a
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maximum of IS OOO pcr event for general liability and property damages During fiscal year

1986 the City became a member of the Utah Risk Management Mutual Association URMMA

URMMA provides general liability automobile liability and crrors and omissions coverage to its

members for claims in excess of coverage provided by the self insurance fund The City is also

self insured for unemployment claims

The City has purchased commercial insurancc for property damage to its buildings and damage to

its hcavy equipment large fire apparatuses street sweeper and sewer truck The amounts of

settlements have not exceeded insurance coverage for any ofthe past three fiscal years All other

City vehicles are not covered for property damage Claims information for the past two years is as

follows

Coinsurance and deductible insurance

payments made by the City
Claims liability June 30

2006 2005

147 324 325470

220 078 470 227

60 861 156 149

0 492 224

306 5 147 324

Claims liability July 1

Claims incurred during the year and changes
in estimates

Payments on claims during the year

Payments made by insurance

NOTE 12

Jointly Govern cd Organization

The City in conjunction with other governmental entities jointly governs URMMA URMMA s

board is comprised of one mcmber from each participating entity Except for the customary fees

no participant has any obligation entitlement or residual interest

URMMA was formed by an interlocal agreement effective September 30 1985 pursuant to the

provisions of the Utah Interlocal Cooperation Act The interlocal agreement has a fifty year term

Municipalities seek membership in the Association in order to provide more comprehensive and

economical risk coverage to reduce the amount and frequency of losses and to decrease the cost

incurred in handling and litigating claims
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NOTE 13

Investment in Joint Ventures

South Valley Water Reclamation Facility
The City of West Jordan has a 2822 percent ownership in the South Valley Water Reclamation

Facility SVWRF that is accounted for by the equity method SVWRF a separate legal entity
was fOffi1ed pursuant to the provisions of the Interlocal Cooperation Act to maintain and operate
regional sewage treatment facilities for the benefit of its member entities SVWRF s membership
is comprised oftwo municipalities and three suburban sanitary improvement districts In addition
to West Jordan the members consist of South Valley Sewer District Sandy Suburban

Improvement district Midvalley Improvement District and Midvale City that have ownership
interests of 34 72 percent 20 17 percent 10 11 percent and 6 78 percent respectively

Summary financial information for the SVWRF joint venture at December 31 2006 and for the

year then ended is as follows

Total Assets

Total Liabilities

Total Fund Equity

70 826 061

21 686 695

49 139366

Total Revenues

Total Expenses
Net Loss Before Contributions

Contributions From Members

Changes in Net Assets

8 156 974

10 874 505

2 717 531
1 602 698

1114 833

Trans Jordan Cities Landfill

The City of West Jordan has a26 15 percent ownership in the Trans Jordan Cities Landfill Trans
Jordan that is accounted for by the equity method The primary purpose ofthe Trans Jordan is the

operation maintenance and control ofa refuse dumping site situated east ofBingham Canyon in

Salt Lake County Residents and businesses from all member cities and Salt Lake County can use

the facility by paying a tipping fee for each refuse load Trans Jordan is also used for the disposal
ofweekly garbage pickups ofthe cities in Trans Jordan for which an assessment is charged In
addition to West Jordan the Trans Jordan is owned by the cities of Midvale Murray Sandy
Draper South Jordan and Riverton that have ownership interests of 5 92 percent 9 32 percent
33 20 percent 7 25 percent 10 25 percent and 7 91 percent respectively
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Srn lmar ainancial information for the Trans Jordan joint venture at June 30 2006 and for the

ycar then ended is as follows

Total Assets

Total Liabilities
Total Fund Equity

19 467 748

4208 283

15 259465

Total Revenues

Total Expenses
Net Income Before Contributions

Contributions From Members

Changes in Net Assets

5 700468
5 976 124

275 656

446 871

171 215

NOTE 14

Conduit Debt

The City has issued Industrial Revenue Bonds to provide financial assistance to private sector

entities for the acquisition and construction of industrial and commercial facilitics deemed to be in

the public intcrest The honds arc secured by the property financed and are payable solely from

payments reccived on the underlying mortgage loans Upon repayment of the bonds ownership of

the acquired facilitics transfers to thc private sector entity scrved by the bond issuance The City is

not obligated in any manner for repayment of the bonds Accordingly the bonds are not reported
as liabilities in the accompanying financial statemcnts As ofJune 30 2006 there were nine serics
of Industrial Revenue Bonds outstanding The aggregate principal amount payable for the series
could not be determined however their original issue amounts totaled 56 215 000

NOTE 15

Commitments Contingencies

a Litigation
The City is a defendant in a number of lawsuits that have arisen in the normal course of operations
It is not possible to state the ultimate liability if any in these matters However the City
Attorney after consultation with the City Council intends to vigorously defend the City s position
and is ofthe opinion that the ultimate resolution ofthese matters will not have amaterial adverse
efIect on the basic financial statements ofthe City
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b Construction contracts

At year end the City has open construction contracts Work that has been completed but not yet
paid for are reflected as accounts payable and construction work in process The uncompleted
balance remaining on open contracts was approximately 1 128 300 June 30 2006

c Other Postemployment Benefits

The City provides postretirement health and dental care benefits for certain retirees and their

dependents Retired employees may convert their sick leave balance toward the monthly health
and dental insurance premium The percentage of convertible hours varies depending upon a

retiree s years ofservice Employees with 5 to 9 years ofservice are eligible to convert 40 percent
of their sick leave hours employees with 10 to 14 years of service arc eligible to convert 50

percent of their sick leave hours employees with lS to 19 years of service are eligible to convert

60 percent of their sick leave hours employees with 20 or more years of service are eligible to

convert 70 percent of their sick leave hours The governments regular health and dental care

benefit providers underwrite the retiree s policies As of year end there were 10 employees
receiving benefits under this program

NOTE 16

Expenditures Exceeding Appropriations

Parks and recreation expenditures in the Western Stampede Special Revenue Fund exceed

appropriations by 88 348 The City will monitor expenditures closely in the future to ensure

compliance with budgetary appropriations

NOTE 17

Deficit Fund Balance

The Western Stampede Fund has a deficit fund balance of 23493 The City is committed to

making the Western Stampede an enjoyable event for its citizens In order to correct the deficit

fund balance in the Western Stampede fund the City may elect to increase the transfer from the

General Fund in the coming fiscal year

The Kraftrnaid Special Improvement District Fund has a deficit fund balance of 692 l86 The

deficit is due to capital outlay expenditures In the coming year long term debt will be issued to

fund the 2006 expenditures and future capital expenditures
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COMBINING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Special Revenue Funds

Special Revenue Funds are used to account for specific revenues that are legally
restricted to expenditures for particular purposes

Western Stampede Fund This fund is used to account for the activities

associated with the annual July 4th celebration

Fairway Estates Special Service District This fund is used to develop and

maintain recreation areas within the Fairway Estates subdivision

Kraftmaid Special Service District This fund is used to develop infrastructure

and maintain grounds in the Kraftmaid district

Capital Projects Funds

Capital Projects Funds arc used to account for the acquisition and construction of

major capital facilities other than those financed by proprietary funds

Municipal Buildilg AuthOlity This fund is used to gain financing and construct

facilities such as new buildings
Stann Capital Improvement Fund This fund is used to collect storm impact fees

and construct or improve storm sewer infrastructure

Building Capital Improvement Fund This fund is used collect impact fees and

construct new buildings for the general government
Community Development Block Grant This fund is used to account for programs

funded by Community Development Block Grant funds
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SCHEDULES OF REVENUES EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE BUDGET AND ACTUAL

Special Revenue and Capital Projects Funds
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CITY OF WEST JORDAN

Western Stampede Fund

Schedule of Revenues Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended June 30 2006

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive

Original Final Amounts N egative

Revenues

Charges for services 97 300 100 000 114 082 14 082
Total revenues 97 300 100 000 114 082 14 082

Expenditures
Parks and recreation 110 800 110 800 199 148 88 348

Total expenditures 110 800 110 800 199 148 88 348

Excess ofrevenues over expenditures 13 500 10 800 85 066 74 266

Other financing sources

Transfers in 30 000 93 000 93 000

Total other financing sources 30 000 93 000 93 000

Net change in fund balance 16 500 82 200 7 934 74 266

Fund balance beginning 31427 31427 31427
Fund balance ending 14 927 50 773 23 493 74 266
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CITY OF WEST JORDAN

Fairway Estates Fund

Schedule ofRevenues Expenditures and Changcs in Fund Balance Budget and Actual

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30 2006

Revenues

Taxes

Interest

Total revenues

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive

Original Final Amounts Negative

7 250 7 250 6 951 299

140 140

7 250 7 250 7 091 159

Expenditures
Parks and recrcation

Total expcnditures
7250

7 250

7250
7 250

6 174

6 174

1 076

1 076

Excess ofrevenues over expenditures 917 917

Net change in fund balance 917 917

Fund balance beginning 1 672 1 672 1 672
Fund balance ending 1 672 1 672 2 589 917
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CITY OF WEST JORDAN

Kraftmaid SID Fund

Schedule ofRevenues Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended June 30 2006

Budgeted Amounts

Original Final

Revenues

Charges for services

Total revenues

Expend itures

Community Development
Debt service

Interest and fiscal charges
Total expenditures

4 171 804

208 300

4 380 104

Excess ofrevenues over expenditures 4 380 104

Other financing sources

Bond proceeds
Total other financing sources

5 180 000

5 180 000

Net change in fund balance 799 896

Fund balance beginning
Fund balance ending 799 896

76

Actual

Amounts

1 109 690

77 496

1 187 186

1 187 186

495 000

495 000

692 186

692 186

Variance with

Final Budget
Positive

Negative

3 062 114

130 804

3 192 918

3 192 918

4 685 000

4 685 000

1 492 082

1 492 082
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CITY OF WEST JORDAN

Road Capital Improvement Fund

Schedule of Revenues Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance Budget and Actual

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30 2006

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive

Original Final Amounts Negative
Revenues

Impact fees 1 800 000 1 800 000 2 207 678 407 678

Interest 55 000 55 000 51 652 3 348

Intergovernmental 4 555 4 555

Total revenues 1 855 000 1 855 000 2 263 885 408 885

Expenditures
Debt service

Principal payments 440 000 440 000 440 000

Interest and fiscal charges 130 000 130 000 124 675 5 325

Capital Outlay
Roads 5 379 480 6 161 150 2 582 437 3 578 713

Total expenditures 5 949 480 6 731 150 3 147 112 3 584 038

Excess of deficiency ofrevenues

over under expenditures 4 094 480 4876 150 883 227 3 992 923

Other financing sources uses

Transfers in 3 488 777 5 299 228 2 208 144 3 091 084

Total other financing sources 3488 777 5 299 228 2 208 144 3 091 084

Net change in fund balance 605 703 423 078 1 324 917 901 839

Fund balance beginning 402 781 402 781 402 781

Fund balance ending 202 922 825 859 1 727 698 901 839
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CITY OF WEST JORDAN

Park Capital Improvement Fund

Schedule of Revenues Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance Budget and Actual

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30 2006

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive

Original Final Amounts Negative
Revenues

Intergovernmental 260 652 260 652

Impact fees 1 612 184 1 612 184 1 430 920 181 264

Interest 260 618 260 618

Total revenues 1 612 184 1 612184 1 952 190 79 354

Expendi tures

Debt service

Principal payments 800 000 800 000 800 000

Capital Outlay
Parks 796 276 6 076 356 1 347 950 4 728 406

Total expenditures 1 596 276 6 876 356 1 347 950 5 528406

Excess of deficiency of revenues

over under expenditures 15 908 5 264 172 604 240 5 607 760

Other tinancing sources uses

Transfers in 778 164 778 164

Transfers out

Total other financing sources 778 164 778 164

Net change in fund balance 15 908 4486 008 1 382 404 5 868 412

Fund balance beginning 4 997 258 4 997 258 4 997 258

Fund balance ending 5 013 166 511 250 6 379 662 5 868 412
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CITY OF WEST JORDAN

Municipal Building Authority
Schedule of Revenues Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance Budget and Actual

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30 2006

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive

Original Final Amounts Negative
Revenues

Interest 18 000 18 000 62 723 44 723

Total revenues 18 000 18 000 62 723 44 723

Expenditures
Debt service

Principal payments 425 000 425 000 425 000

Interest and fiscal charges 286 990 286 990 287 339 349

Total expenditures 711 990 711 990 712 339 349

Excess of deficiency ofrevenues

over under expenditures 693 990 693 990 649 616 44 374

Other financing sources uses

Transfers in 711 990 711 990 711 990

Total other financing sources 711 990 711 990 711 990

Net change in fund balance 18 000 18 000 62 374 44 374

Fund balance beginning 1 588 931 1 588 931 1 588 931

Fund balance ending 1 606 931 1 606 931 1 651 305 44 374

80



CITY OF WEST JORDAN

Storm Capital Improvement Fund

Schedule ofRevenues Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance Budget and Actual

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30 2006

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive

Original final Amounts Negative
Revenues

Impact fees 1 500 000 1 500 000 1 413 869 86 131

Interest 194 051 194 05 I

Total revenues 1 500 000 1 500 000 1 607 920 107 920

Expenditures
Capital Outlay

Storm 765 000 4 409 395 1 201 971 3 207424
Total expenditures 765 000 4 409 395 1 201 971 3 207 424

Excess of deficiency of revenues

over under expenditures 735 000 2 909 395 405 949 3 315 344

Other financing sources uses

Transfers in

Transfers out

Total other financing sources

Net change in fund balance 735 000 2 909 395 405 949 3 315344

Fund balance beginning 4 334 534 4 334 534 4 334 534

Fund balance ending 5Jl69 534 1 425 139 4 740483 3 315 344
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CITY OF WEST JORDAN

Community Development Block Grant Fund

Schedule of Revenues Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance Budget and Actual

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30 2006

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive

Original Final Amounts Negative
Revenues

Intergovernmental 920 972 931 531 541 696 389 835

Total revenues 920 972 931 531 541 696 389 835

Expenditures
Current

Community development 702 272 712 831 322 653 390 178

Debt service

Principal payments 85 000 85 000 85 000

Interest and fiscal charges 133 700 133 700 134 048 348

Total expenditures 920 972 931 531 541 701 389 830

Excess of deficiency of revenues

over under expenditures 5

Other financing sources uses

Transfers in

Total other financing sources

Net change in fund balance 5 5

Fund balance beginning 556 984 556 984 556 984

Fund balance ending 556 984 556 984 556 979 5
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SUPPLEMENTARY INDIVIDUAL FUND FINANCIAL SCHEDULES

General Fund

These supplementary schedules are included to provide management additional information for
financial analysis
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ern OF WEST JORDAN

General hmd

Sohedule of Revenues Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balanoc Budget and Actlll

For the Year Ended June 30 2006

Varianoe with

Final Budget
Budgeted Am ACOlal Positive

Original Amoun heg tive

Revenues

Taxes 23 678 998 23 678 998 25 917 237 2 238 239

Licenses and permits 2 35 500 2 135 500 2 735 206 599706

Intergovernmental 3 086 082 3 420 063 3 527 851 107 788

Charges for5crvices 2 537 333 2 531 333 1 834 952 702 381

Fines and forfeinues 1 911 570 1 971 570 1 883 114 94 456

Interfund charges 3 846 938 3 846 938 3 846 938

Inlerest income 160 000 160 000 596 811 436 811

MieUaneous 193 100 193 100 311881 118 181

otal revenues 31 6 5 521 17 949 502 40 65 990 2 104 488

Expenditllres
Gcncalgovernment

Mayor city council 212 521 212 521 20n 695 1l 826

Boards eommissiollS 59313 70 961 61 880 9 081

Court 181 144 187144 696 077 9 067

City manager 501 736 501 736 514 134 12 398

SUpport senices 213 870 213 810 211 963 1 907

Managcffient infllmlation systems 962 975 1 003 185 897 201 J 05 984

Facilities 778 449 118 449 781 133 3 284

Hwnan resources 307 797 307 397 301 584 187

Aeeounling 741 868 741 868 686 247 55 621

Utility billing 602 968 602 968 530 808 72 160

T reasllt 442 923 442 923 411 434 31 489

Recorder 239 848 250 719 259 405 8 626

Elections 72 100 61 169 61 169 0

Attomey 814 364 1 866 431 1 548 529 317 902

Nondepartmental J06 R31 256 831 713 796 483 035

ToW general government 9 044 701 9 08 232 7 942 655 577

Commllnity devclopmCllt
Planning zoning 994 865 994 865 930 669 64 196

Building safety 23 49 911349 934 91 41

Tutal community dcvelopment 112 214 1 912 214 1 756 603

Police

Support seviees 5 128 012 5 133 012 4 899 796 233 216

Line services 6705 576 6 168 474 6 811 724 43 250

Animal control 298 159 y 295 40 2 750

Total police 12 l3lJ flL99 645 1106 912 L
Fire 7 550 417 8532 413 7 658 183 874 230

Public works
Public works administration 593 083 593 083 419 972 173 III

Engineering 2 151 088 2 157 088 2 022 152 134 936

Streets 2 216 518 2 276 518 2 200 529 75 989

C road projects 597 500 1 665 939 317 033 8 90

Total public works 5 624 189 6 69l ti 4 959 686 1732 942

Parks and recreation

Parks 1 134 932 1 734 932 1 485 014 249 918

Cemeteries 101 440 69 319 32 121

Total parks and rccrcation 1 836 372 6 372 1 554 333 282 09

Total expendItures 38099 646 40 27U04 35 878 389 4393 116

Excess of revenues overexpenditures 484 125 2 322 002 4 175 601 7 091 603

Othcr financing sources uses

TransfeI1l in 692 338 742 338 742 338

TralL fers Ollt 4 242 767 4 871 5 830 8lJl 2 354 058

Tolal other mancing sollrees uses 1 550429 42 539 5 088 48l 2354 OS

Net change infund balance 4 034 5 J2 164 541 2 880 9 451 661

Fund balatlce heginning l1l l122136 1122 136

Fund balance ending 9 087 582 3 351 595 12 809 256 9 451 661
0

lhenotes 10 thebasic tinaneial statemollt arc an integral part of this statement
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COMBINING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

Internal service funds are used to account for the financing of goods or services

provided by one department or agency to other departments or agencies of the

City and to other government units

Fleet Operations Fund This fund is used to account for the costs of operating a

maintenance facility for automotive equipment used by other City departments A
service fee is charged to the other departments monthly

Risk Management This fund is used to account for the costs of insurance

premiums and claims made against the City Monies are accumulated in this fund
to pay premiums for liability and property damage insurance and other claims
The City participates in the Utah Risk Management Mutual Association for its

liability and property damage insurance and is responsible for annual premiums as

well as 100 of losses above the deductible in an amount equal to 20 ofall net

loss payments made during the previous five years on behalf ofthe City
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Internal Service Funds

Combining Statement ofNet Assets

J line 30 2006

Fleet Risk

Operations Management Total

Assets

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 6 671 716 1415 095 8 086 811

Inventory 74 250 74 250

Total current assets 6 745 966 1 415 095 8161 061

Noncurrent assets

Capital assets

Machinery and equipment 11 172 382 11 172 382

Less accumulated depreciation 7 962 737 7 962 737

rota1 noncurrent assets 3209 645 3 209 645

Total assets 9 955 611 14l5 095 11 370 706

Clment liabilities
Accounts payable 101 712 78 874 180 586

Payroll payable 7 147 7 147

Compensated absences 23 907 23 907

Current portion capital lease payable 155 805 155 805

Other accrued payables 539 695 539 695

Total current liabilities 288 571 618 569 907 140

Non current liabilities

Compensated absences 17 797 17 797

Capital lease payable 843 085 843 085

Total noncurrent liabilities 860 882 860 882

Total liabilities l 149453 618 569 1 768 022

Net assets

Invested in capital assets net of related deb 2 210 755 2 210 755

Unrestricted 6 595 403 796 526 7 391 929
Total net assets 8 806 158 796 526 9 602 684

87



CITY OF WEST JORDAN

Internal Service Funds

Combining Statement of Revenues Expenses and Changes in Net Assets

For the fiscal year ended June 30 2006

Fleet Risk

Operations Management Total

Operating revenues

Charges for services internal 2 199 261 625 528 2 824789

Operating expenses

Depreciation 880 17 880 117

Salaries and benefits 510 323 510 323

Professional and technical 3 650 448 978 452 628

Supplies and maintenance 1 038 812 1 038 812

Total operating expenses 2432 902 448 978 2 881 880

Operating income 233 641 176 550 57 091

Nonoperating revenues expenses
Interest earnings 274 740 274 740

Interest expense 2 661 2 661

Gain loss on disposal ofequipment 62 598 62 598

Total nonoperating revenues 334 677 334 677

Income before transfers 101 036 176 550 277 586

Transfers in 20 921 20 921

Changes in net assets 121 957 176 550 298 507

Net assets beginning 8 684 201 619 976 9 304 177

Net assets ending 8 806 158 796 526 9 602 684
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Statement continued on next page

89



CITY OF WEST JORDAN

Internal Service Funds

Combining Statement of Cash Flows cont

For the fiscal year ended June 30 2006

Fleet Risk

Operations Management Total

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash

provided by operating activities

Operating income 233 641 176 550 57 091

Adjustments to operating income

Depreciation 880 117 880 117
Change in assets and liabilities

Inventory 7 513 7 513
Accounts payable 12 728 60 610 47 882

Payroll payable 16 720 16 720
Other accrued payablcs 16 006 16 006
Compensated absences 5 690 5 690

Total adjustments to operating income 848 846 76 616 925 462

Net cash provided by
operating activities 615 205 253 166 868 371
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STATISTICAL SECTION

This part ofthe City of West Jordan s comprehensive annual financial report presents

detailed infornlation as a context for understanding what the information in the financial

statements notc disclosurers and required supplementary information says about the

city s overall financial health

Financial Trends

These schedules provide trend information to help the reader understand how the City s financial

performance and economic condition have changed over time

Revenue Capacity
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the City s most significant local revenue

sources sales taxes and property taxes

Debt Capacity

These schedulcs provide information to help the reader assess the affordability of the City s current

levels ofoutstanding debt and thc City s ability to issuc additional debt in the future

Demographic and Economic Information

These schedules present demographic and economic indicators to help the reader understand the

environment within which the City s financial activities take place

Operating Information

These schcdules contain service and infrastructure data to hclp the reader understand how the

information in the City s financial report relates to the services the City provides and the activitics it

performs

Note Unless otherwise noted the information in these schedules is derived from the comprehensive
annual financial reports for the relevant year The City implemented GASB Statement 44 in 2004 new

information required by GASB 44 is shown prospectively
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Expenses
Governmental activities

General government
Community development
Police

Fire

Public works

Parks and recreation

Interest on long term debt

Total goverrunental activities

Business type activities

Water

Sewer

Solid waste

Total business type activities

Total primary government expenses

Program Revenues

Governmental activities

Charges for services

General government
Community development
Police

Fire

Public works

Parks and recreation

Operating grants and contributions

Capital grants and contributions

Total govenuuental activities

Business type activities

Charges for services

Water

Sewer

Solid waste

Operating grants and contributions

Capital grants and contributions

Total business type activities

Total primary government program revenues

Schedule 2

CITY OF WEST JORDAN

Changes in Net Assets

Last Four Fiscal Years
accrual basis of accounting

Fiscal Year

2003 2004 2005 2006

5 114 827 4 578 769 7 268 095 8 233 366

1 851 575 2 284 598 2 162474 9 008 307

9 I 00 682 9 741 809 10 792 590 12 311 174

5 629 061 7 081 016 7 192 872 8 033 001

10 211767 11 180 441 10 157 241 10 520 361

2 207 450 2 175 055 2 217 892 2 935 580

1 353 890 1 257 289 1 636 608 1 839 223

35469 252 38 298 977 41 427 772 52 881 012

8199 704 9 837 122 8 925 550 11464 422
4 645 292 5 224 852 3 522 665 5 915 633

2 225 315 2 660 084 2449 861 3 224 165

15 070 311 17 722 058 14 898 076 20 604 220

50 539 563 56 021035 56 325 848 73 485232

1 692 327 2 074 621 2 102 427 6 007 552

2 022 160 3 047 506 2 129 639 3 064 046

91 109 364 893 242 823 345 409

556 080 1 010 853 908 920 1 052 514

455 769 3 434 542 2 590 112 7 264 945

205 634 2 378 8 0 1 725471 711 505

900 802 830 090 1 224 145 1 165 432

30 819 544 5 912 065 7 634 957

36 743 425 19 053 380 18 558494 20 611403

8 268 126 2453 320 12 287 321 13 173 079

4 045415 6544 882 6 588 050 6 610 086
2 611 483 3 181 828 3 421 375 3 284 713

4 188463 6 832403 5 102 505 4313 980

19 113487 29 012 433 27 399 251 27 381 858

55 856 9 2 48 065 813 45 957 745 47 993 261
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Schedule 2
CITY OF WEST JORDAN

Changes in Net Assets continued

Last Four Fiscal Years

accrual basis ofaccounting

Fiscal Year

2003 2004 2005 2006
Net Expense Revenue

Governmental activities 1 274 173 19 245 597 22 869 278 32 269 609
Business type activities 4 043 176 11 290 375 12 501 175 6 777 638

Total primary government net expense revenue 5 317 349 7 955 222 I 0 368 I03 25491 971
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Schedule 3

CITY OF WEST JORDAN

Fund Balances Governmental Funds

Last Four Fiscal Years

modified accrual basis of accounting

Fiscal Year

2003 2004 2005 2006

General Fund

Reserved 4 338 551 4 093 173 4 904 561 6460 662

Unreserved 5 994 981 7 956 711 8 217 575 6348 594

Total general fund 10 333 532 12 049 884 13 122 136 12 809 256

All Other Governmental Funds

Reserved 10408 268 9 541 976 11 368 844 7 730 172

Unreserved reported in

Capital projects foods 3 509 318 4 846 143 8 856 990 17 348 078

Special revenue funds 1456 330 1 355 916 245 141 852 943

Total all other governmental funds 15 373 916 15744 035 19 980 693 24 225 307

Total governmental funds 25 707 448 27 793 919 33 102 829 37 034 563
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Schedule 4

CITY OF WEST JORDAN

Changes in Fund Balances Governmental Funds
Last Four Fiscal Years

modified accrual basis ofaccounting

Fiscal Year

2003 2004 2005 2006
Revenues

Taxes 22 967 051 24 911 029 26 823 344 29 571 835

Licenses and permits 1 923 378 2 777 196 1 977 626 2 735 206
Intergovemmental 4 079 779 4 123 786 3 570 836 4 490 199
Charges for services 3 195 167 3 919 569 2 178 876 1 949 034
Fines and forfeitures 1442 294 1 822 690 1 838 734 1 883 114

Interfund charges 3 846 938
Impact fees 4 893 627 5 512 123 3 704 156 5 683 40 I
Interest 492 384 403 806 889 975 1 531 230
Donations 75 000

Miscellaneous 129 925 396 862 345 471 762 264

Total revenues 39 198 605 43 867 061 41 329 0 8 52 453 221

Expenditures
General government 5 903 391 6 382 793 7 266 953 7 942 655

Community development 1 778 198 2 269 901 2 210 631 9 943412
Police 8 962448 9 608 342 10 845 453 12 006 929
Fire 5 514 809 6 614 197 7 169 471 7 658 183
Public works 5 088 531 5 572 241 4 515 394 4 959 686
Parks and recreation 1 664 256 1 565423 1 525 720 2 082 308

Debt Service

Principal 2 674449 3 634 301 2 997 110 2 815 000

Interest 1 297 503 1 196 199 1 519 546 1 850473
Bond issuance costs 214 576

Capital outlay 4 629 343 7 873 749 12 078423 7 6 3 265

Total expenditures 37 5 2 928 44 717 146 50 128 70 57 086487

Excess deficiency of revenues

over under expenditures 1 685 677 850 085 8 799 683 4 633 266

Other Financing Sources Uses

Issuance ofbonds 1 000 000 11 218 209 8 515 000

Sale ofland 122 698 2 012 953

Transfers in 2 103 972 1 861 67 31 625 108 8 023 776

Transfers out 2 291 175 1 938 068 28734 724 7 973 776

Total other financing sources uses 64 505 2 936 556 14 108 593 8 565 000

Net change in fund balances 1 621 172 2 086471 5 308 910 3 931 735

Debt service as a percentage
ofnoncapital expenditures 12 2 13 2 12 0 10 5

Note Noncapital expenditures are total expenditures less capital outlay and expenditures for capitalized assets included

within the functional expenditure categories
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Schedule 5

CITY OF WEST JORDAN

Tax Revenues by Source Governmental Funds
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal

Year

Motor Vehiele

Property Fee in lieu of Sales Franchise
Tax I Property Tax Tax Tax Total

3 250 199 387 942 6 496 655 1 614 113 11 748 909

3 386 455 563 350 6 075 692 1 911240 11 936 737

3 736 559 616 623 6 743 350 1 893 352 12 989 884
4 014328 545 800 7 752 399 1 943 231 14 255 758
4 884 985 600 006 9 225 689 2 607 900 17 318 580

6494 924 808 441 10 530 86 3 244 274 21 078 500

8 696 346 938 140 10422 430 2 910 135 22 967 051

9 196 239 909 928 11406 021 3 398 841 24 911 029
9 675 062 1 024 886 12 329 909 3793 487 26 823 344

10 066 022 1 037 038 13 876 702 4 592 073 29 571 835

1997

1998

1999

2000
2001

2002

2003
2004

2005

2006

Growth

1997 2006 209 7 167 3 113 6 1845 1517

Note As part of the implementation ofGASB 34 in 2003 the redevelopment agency is included with the

governmental funds

1 Includes penalties and interest
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Schedule 6

CITY OF WEST JORDAN

Direct Taxable Sales by Category
Last Seven Calendar Years

Category
Business City Direct

Calendar Equipment Sales Tax

Year Retail Services Utilities Other Total Rate

1999 366 306 244 35 120 184 95 300 957 33 854 185 530 581 570 1000

2000 441 362 445 45 766 958 115 732 778 31 838 347 634 700 528 1000

2001 499 779 073 53 013 987 96 822 383 35 538 938 685 154 381 1000

2002 645 256 966 56 953 637 111 821493 28 726 768 842 758 864 1000

2003 721 372 070 59 432 966 127 965 982 66 052 345 974 823 363 1000

2004 779 610 890 65 804 244 138 978 445 44 577 138 1 028 970 717 1 000

2005 799 387 798 70 187 042 162 597 956 92 238 928 1124 411 724 1000

Source Utah State Tax Commission
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Schedule7

Try 01 WEST JORDAN

Assessed Value and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property
Last Ten Fiscal Ycars

Assessed

Primary Total Taxahle Total Estimated Valueas a

Fiscal Residential Other Less Assessed Direct Tax Actual Percentage of

Year Property Property Adjustl11ents Value Rate Value l ActualValue

1997 N A N A N A 1 455 378 195 0 002277 2 079 111 707 70 00

19JH N A N A N A 1 539 816471 0 002143 2 199 737 819 70 00

1999 N A N A N A 1 607 515 782 0 002150 2 296451 118 7000

2000 N A N A N A 1 753 573 920 0 002198 2 505 105 600 7000

2001 NtA N A N A 2 036 053 281 0002296 2 908 647 544 70 00

2002 N A N A NtA 2 407 894 022 0002483 3 929 972 290 61 27

2003 N A N A N A 2 647 019 329 0 002419 4 453 262 667 5944

2004 1 913 727 274 1 089 015 730 265 1 16 877 2 737 626 127 0 002466 4 568 519 865 59 92

2005 2 077 650 682 1 175 997 080 218 199 952 3 035 447 810 0002695 4 953 543 775 6128

2006 2 300 533 795 1 244 500 864 239 861 138 3 305 173 521 0 002572 5 427 289 582 60 90

Note Property inSalt Lake County is reassessed onee every tlve years On average The county assesses non residential property at actual value

and assesses residential property at 55 percent of actual value Estimated actual valueof residential property is calculated by dividing assessed

value by 55 percent Tax rates are per dollar of assessed value

1 Years preceding 2002 were based on estimated ratio ofassessed to market value Years 2002 and 2003 are estimated based on ratio of assessed

to market value for the prior fiscal year Years following 2003 are estimated hased on ratio of assessed to market value for thecurrent fiscal year

NIA Not available

Sources Utah State Tax Commission Salt Lake County Auditor s Office
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Schedule 8

CITY OF WEST JORDAN

Property Tax Levies and ColIections

Last Ten Fiscal Years

ColIected within the

Total Fiscal Year ofthe Levy ColIections Total ColIections to Date

Fiscal Tax Percentage in Subsequent Percentage
Year Levy Amount ofLevy Years Amount ofLevy
1997 2 211 801 2 216 947 100 23
1998 3 378 547 3 360 662 9947

1999 3 704 862 3 706 166 100 04

2000 4 013 369 3 992 483 99 48

2001 4 940 754 4 850 688 98 18
2002 6 537 928 6466 754 98 91

2003 6 750 625 6 743 407 99 89
2004 7387 101 7 044 284 9536 211165 7 255 448 9822

2005 8 727 713 8 394 805 9619 202 529 8 597 335 98 51
2006 9 085 903 8747 963 96 28 8 747 963 9628

Note Years preceding 2004 reflect total colIections including delinquent collections relative to the tax levy Year

2004 begins tracking collections by levy year as specified by GASB 44

Source Salt Lake County Treasurer
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Schedule 9

CITY OF WEST JORDAN

Direct and Overlapping Sales Tax Rates

Last Seven Fiscal Years

Overlapping Rates

City Botanical

Fiscal Direct State of Salt Lake Mass Cultural

Year Rate 1 Utah County Transit Zoo Total

2000 1 000 o 4 750 0 250 0 250 0 100 6350

2001 1000 4 750 0 250 0 500 0 100 6 600

2002 1 000 4 750 0 250 0 500 0 100 6 600

2003 1 000 4 750 0 250 0 500 0 100 6 600

2004 1 000 4 750 0 250 0 500 0 100 6 600

2005 1 000 4 750 0 250 0 500 0 100 6 600

2006 1 000 4 750 0 250 0 500 0 100 6 600

Note Overlapping rates are those of other governments and agencies that apply to taxable sales within the City

1 Ofthe total sales taxes assessed by municipalities within the state 50 percent is distributed based on point of

sale and 50 percent is pooled and distributed based on population

Source Utah State Tax Commission
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Schedule 10

CITY OF WEST JORDAN

Direct and Overlapping Property Tax Rates

Last Ten Fiscal Years

City Direct Rates Overlapping Rates

Jordan
Fiscal Debt Total Salt Lake Schoo
Year Operating Service Direct County District Other Total

1997 0 002277 0 000000 0 002277 0 004764 0 006392 0 000342 0 013775
1998 0 002413 0 000000 0 0024 3 0 004572 0 006504 0 000400 0 013889
1999 0 002150 0 000000 0 002150 0 003828 0 006561 0 000400 0 0 2939
2000 0 002198 0 000000 0 002198 0 0039 3 0 007582 0 000396 0 014089
2001 0 002296 0 000000 0 002296 0 003899 0 008845 0 000377 0 015417
2002 0 002483 0 000000 0 002483 0 003789 0 008424 0 000783 0 015479
2003 0 0024 9 0 000000 0 002419 0 003683 0 008344 0 000767 0 015213
2004 0 002466 0 000000 0 002466 0 003615 0 008366 0 000789 0 015236
2005 0 002420 0 000275 0 002695 0 003549 0 008856 0 000778 0 015878
2006 0 002319 0 000253 0 002572 0 003378 0 008655 0 000831 0 015436

Note Overlapping rates are those ofother governments and agencies that apply to property owners within the

City Tax rates are per dollar ofassessed value

1 The City s certified propcrty tax rate may be increased only by a majority vote ofthe city council after
holding one or more truth in taxation public hearings

Source Utah State Tax Commission
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Schedule II

CITY OF WEST JORDAN

Principal Sales Tax Payers
Current Year and Two Years Ago

2006 2004

Percentage of Percentage of

Sales Total Sales Total

Taxpayer Iax 1 Rank Sales Tax 1 Tax I Rank Sales Tax I

Wal Mart Stores N A I N A N A N A

Sam s Club N A 2 N A N A 2 N A

Smith s N A 3 NA N A 9 N1A

Stock Building Supply N A 4 N A N A 3 N A

BMC West N A 5 N A N A 6 N A

The Home Depot N A 6 N A N A 4 N A

Lowe s N A 7 N A N A 10 N A

Target N A 8 N A N A 8 NiA

Rocky Mountain Power N A 9 N A N A N A

Sears Roebuck NiA 10 N A N A 5 N A

Macey s NiA N A N A 7 N A

Total 4 320 944 3114 4 268 655 3742

1 Sales tax infonnation is considered proprietary and cannot be shown by individual payer so the group is shown in the

aggregate

N A Not applicable

Source Utah State Tax Corrunissioll
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Schedule 12

CITY OF WEST JORDAN

Principal Property Tax Payers
Current Year and Nine Years Ago

2006 1997

Percentage of Percentage of
Assessed Total Assessed Assessed Total Assessed

Taxpayer Valuation Rank Valuation Valuation Rank Valuation

Jordan Landing LLC 128 591 800 1 3 89
Jordan Valley Hospital 31 871 600 2 0 96 19 764 200 136
WRI West Jordan 23 080 500 3 0 70
Mtn America Credit Union 21 828 500 4 0 66
Willowcove General LLC 20 802 155 5 0 63

Wal Mart Stores 17485 900 6 0 53
Dannon Company Inc 15 667 400 7 047

Sysco Foods 15 437400 8 047

Sears Roebuck 15 100 600 9 046

IS Properties 13 340400 10 040
Grand Central 10 744 000 2 0 74
Pacific Coast Bldg Prod 14 133 560 3 0 97
Broadmoor Holdings Inc 9 083 580 4 0 62
Stonebridge Ltd 9 078 355 5 0 62
South Wire 8 206 500 6 0 56
AIMCO Properties 7 029 550 7 048
Fairchild Semiconductor 6 508 210 8 045
Cannike Cinemas Inc 6 195 600 9 043

Legacy Management 6 173 200 10 042

Total 303 206 255 9 17 96 916 755 6 66

Source Salt Lake County Assessor
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Fiscal

Year

1997

1998

1999

2000

2001
2002

2003

2004

2005

2006

Schedule 14

CITY OF WEST JORDAN

Ratios of General Bonded Debt Outstanding
Last Ten Fiscal Years

General Bonded Debt Outstanding
General

Obligation
Bonds

10455 000

10 110 000

Other

Bonds

I See Schedule 7 for property value data

2 See Schedule 22 for population data

Total

10 455 000

10 110 000

108

Percentage of

Actual Taxable

Value of

Property I

034

0 31

Per

Capita 2

110
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Schedule 5

CITY OF WEST JORDAN

Direct and Overlapping Governmental Activities Debt

As ofJune 30 2006

Governmental Unit

Estimated Estimated

Percentage Amount

Debt Applicable to Applicable to

Outstanding West Jordan I West Jordan

39 868 890 100 00 39 868 890

171 915 000 16 86 28 984 869

191 570 000 6 1 I 11 704 927

80 558 686

City ofWest Jordan

Jordan School District

Salt Lake County

Total

Note Overlapping governments are those that coincide at least in part with the geographic
boundaries ofthe City This schedule estimates the portion ofthe outstanding debt ofthose

overlapping governments that is borne by the residents and businesse

1 The percentage ofoverlapping debt applicahle is estimated using taxable assessed property values

Applicable percentages were estimated by dividing the City s taxable assessed value by each

overlapping unit s total taxable assessed value

Sources Utah State Tax Commission Jordan School District Salt Lake County Auditor s Office

109



M
00

r

C 0
00

C
t cO

C C

gC
t t

if g
CO 0

a

A

d
iC a

t O

i 0
t

l

t 2f
Si 0

0

g C O
M

M

CO
000

M

M ci

k 0
00 0

00

8
a

M

3

gZ u M d0

J a 0

j n 0

s Q 8 M J
r s

3
M

U

I
z

A

0
Q

ir

C
M Co G

if M 0

3 t 0

0 G

2

g t M G

0 00

0 0

oc k 0
0

00
00 G a

0 0
t

0
M

A

M

G

a0

00 c

8i a

1 00

fl

q

00 0 f
8 0

u00

i c

J
a

f

A
u

2

0

I
5 U

9 s
0

J u i
90

5h 3
J if ga

7
0

1 E jE
11 Ez ll

1
1 q Q

1 1
5 1i1 t 1
a w Q Q 0

D r l

110



Schedulc 17

CITY OF WEST JORDAN

Pledged Revenue Coverage
Water Revenue Bonds

Last Ten Fiscal Ycars

Net Revenue

Available

Fiscal Gross Operating for Debt Debt Service Requircments 3

Year Revenues I Expenses 2 Service Principal Interest Total Coverage

1997 7352 336 6 528 854 823 482 178 814 178 814 4 61

1998 7 519719 7127 479 392 240 141 325 14 I 325 2 78

1999 8 954 264 8 130324 823 940 35 000 129 927 164 927 5 00

2000 10 158 308 9 076 015 1 082 293 320 000 121 168 441 168 245

2001 12 950 898 9 655 722 3 295 176 500 000 100 623 600 623 549

2002 11 714 058 10 435 964 1278 094 530 000 74 350 604 350 2 11

2003 9 761 397 6 621 253 3 140 144 1 145 000 68 649 1 213 649 2 59

2004 12 523702 8 095 110 4428 592 900 000 146 086 1 046 086 423

2005 12 521 995 6 085 885 6436 110 1 280 000 237376 1 517 376 424

2006 13 663 327 9 293479 4 369 848 j 250 000 335 879 1 585 879 2 76

Note Details regarding the City s outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements

1 Total revenues including interest and impact fees Prior to 2003 amounts shown are for water and sewer combined

2 Total operating expenses exclusive of depreciation Prior to 2003 amounts shown are for water and sewer combined
3 Prior to 2003 amounts shown arc for water and sewer combined
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Schedule 18

CITY OF WEST JORDAN

Pledged Revenue Coverage
Sales Tax Revenue Bonds

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Sales Tax
Year Revenue

1997 6 496 655

1998 6 075 692
1999 6 743 350

2000 7752 399

2001 9 225 688

2002 10 530 861

2003 10422 430
2004 11 406 021

2005 12 329 909

2006 13 876 702

Debt Service Requirements
Principal Interest Total Coverage

172 993 172 993 60 87

1 235 000 589 335 1 824 335 5 71

1 270 000 550 476 1 820476 6 27

1 310 000 514 175 1 824 175 6 76

1 355 000 469 800 1 824 800 7 60

Note Details regarding the City s outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the fmancial

statements

Schedule 19

CITY OF WEST JORDAN

Pledged Revenue Coverage
Excise Tax Road Bonds

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Class C

Fiscal Road Tax Debt Service Requirements
Year Allotment Principal Interest Total Coverage
1997 992 927

998 1 587463
1999 1 828 655

2000 1 962 119

2001 2 226 675

2002 2 725 943 420 000 228 018 648 0 8 4 21

2003 2 727 564 400 000 163 848 563 848 4 84

2004 3113 374 410 000 154 962 564 962 5 51

2005 2 357 115 425 000 42 413 567 413 4 15

2006 2 843 839 440 000 124 675 564 675 5 04

Note Details regarding the City s outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the fmancial

statements
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Schedule 20

CITY OF WEST JORDAN

Pledged Revenue Coverage
Tax Increment Revenue Bonds

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Tax

Fiscal Increment Debt Service Requirements
Year Revenue Principal Interest Total Coverage

1997 120 000

1998 120 000

1999 695 086

2000 724 314

2001 1 145 086 320 000 37 264 357 264 321
2002 1 636422 305 000 51 911 356 911 4 58

2003 1 927 527 320 000 35 764 355 764 542

2004 1 864 268 335 000 18 578 353 578 5 27

2005 1 001 561 165 000 44 849 209 849 4 77
2006 985 063 165 000 266 915 431 915 2 28

Note Details regarding the City s outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial

statements

Schedule 21

CITY OF WEST JORDAN

Pledged Revenue Coverage
HUD Contract Payable
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Community
Development

Fiscal Block Grant Debt Service Requirements
Year Revenue Principal Interest Total Coverage
1997 41 291

1998 586 424

1999 469 000

2000 484 171

2001 593 966 99403 99403 5 98

2002 798 511 65 000 155 368 220368 3 62
2003 588465 70 000 150 620 220 620 2 67
2004 559 642 75 000 145 475 220475 2 54

2005 50 1 878 80 000 139 943 219 943 2 28

2006 541 696 85 000 134 048 219 048 247

Note Details regarding the City s outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial

statements
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Fiscal
Year

1997

1998

1999

2000

2001

2002
2003

2004

2005

2006

Population

64 211

67 599

71 039
78 714

81 619

85 865

87 969

92475

95422

97 365

Schedule 22

CITY OF WEST JORDAN

Demographic and Economic Statistics

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Personal

Income 1

N A

N A

N A

N A

2258 724 206

2482 700 610

2 583 385 623
2 746 415 025

2 995 392 002

3 116 945 745

Per Capita
Personal

Income 2

N A

N A

N A

N A

27 674

28 914

29 367

29 699

31 391
32 013

Unemployment
Rate 3

3 0

2 9

34

34

3 2

44

6 0

5 9
52

44

1 Estimates oftotal personal income are derived by multiplying per capita personal
income amounts by the corresponding population

2 Per capita personal income amounts are for Salt Lake County The amounts shown are

for the calendar year that ended during the specifled fiscal year e g amounts for calendar

year2005 arc shown in fiscal year 2006 Amounts for calendar year 2005
3 Unemployment rates are for the Salt Lake City UT metropolitan area The rates shown

are for the calendar year that ended during the specified fiscal year e g rates for calendar

year 2005 are shown in fiscal year 2006

N A Not available

Sources Population infonnation provided by the West Jordan Community Development
Department Per capita personal income information provided by the Governor s Office of

Planning Budget Unemployment rates provided by the U S Department ofLabor Bur
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Schedule 23

CITY OF WES JORDAN

Principal Employers
Current Year and Nine Years Ago

2006 1997

Percentage of Percentage 0

Tota City Tota City
Employer Employees Rank Employment Employees Rank Employment

Jordan School District 2 322 I 6 83 1 044 6 78

WaJ Mm1 581 2 1 71

Fairchild Semi conductor 575 3 1 69 550 2 3 57

West Jordan City 523 4 154 340 3 2 21

Sysco Intennountain Food Services 496 5 146

Jordan Valley Hospital 387 6 114 208 4 135

Smith s 364 7 1 07

Mountain America Credit Union 266 8 0 78

Sam s Club 250 9 0 74

Sears Roebuck 238 10 0 70

Southwire 200 5 130

Interstate Brick 175 6 114

Shopko 144 7 0 93

Fashion Cabinets Mfg Inc 120 8 0 78

West Jordan Care Center 117 9 0 76

Utah Anny National Guard Aviation 105 10 0 68

Total 6 002 17 65 3 003 1949
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Schedule 24

CITY OF WEST JORDAN

Full time Equivalent City Government Employees by Function Program
Last Three Fiscal Years

Function Program 2004 2005 2006

General government
Mayor city council 4 00 4 10 4 10

Administration 9 50 8 90 1440

Support services 15 63 14 63

Finance Administrative services 11 50 1750 27 50

Facilities 4 93

Attorney 8 75 10 75 10 75

Court 10 00 10 00 I LOO

Community development
Planning zoning 9 50 9 50 10 50

Economic dcvelopment LOO 100

Building safety 1225 12 17 1227

Police

Support services 2520 5420 58 70

Line services 108 80 86 80 8635

Animal control 5 00 5 00 5 00

Firc 85 00 85 00 85 00

Public works

Public works administration 0 75 4 00 6 00

Engineering 1533 1833 23 15

Streets 2100 2100 2100

Fleet operations 8 75 8 00 8 00

Parks and recreation 13 00 15 50 1450

Water 17 59 14 00 15 00

Sewer 1216 1 LOO 1 LOO

Solid waste 3 75 100 LOO

Total 39845 41237 430 15

Note Full time equivalent employees shown are based on authorized positions as detennined by the

salary schedule and the personnel budgets for the specified year

Source West Jordan Human Resources Department
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